
CITYOFSHOREWOOD 5755COUNTRY CLUB ROAD
CITYCOUNCIL REGULAR MEETING COUNCIL CHAMBERS
MONDAY, APRIL 10, 2023 7:00P.M.  

Forthosewishing tolisten livetothemeeting, please gotoci.shorewood.mn.us/current_meeting for
themeeting link. Contact thecityat952.960.7900during regular business hourswithquestions.  

AGENDA

1. CONVENE CITYCOUNCIL MEETING

A. Pledge ofAllegiance

B. RollCall
Mayor Labadie___  

Johnson___  
Callies___  
Maddy___  

Sanschagrin___  

C. Review andAdopt Agenda
Attachments

2. CONSENT AGENDA TheConsent Agenda isaseriesofactions whicharebeingconsidered for
adoption thisevening underasinglemotion.  These itemshavebeenreviewed bycitycouncil
andcitystaffandthereshallbenofurther discussion bythecouncil tonight ontheConsent
Agenda items.   Anycouncil member ormember ofcitystaffmayrequest thatanitembe
removed fromtheConsent Agenda forseparate consideration ordiscussion.  Ifthereareany
briefconcerns orquestions bycouncil, wecananswer thosenow.  

Motion toapprove itemsontheConsent Agenda & Adopt Resolutions Therein:  

A. CityCouncil WorkSession Minutes ofMarch 27, 2023 Minutes

B. CityCouncil Regular Meeting Minutes ofMarch 27, 2023 Minutes

C. Approval oftheVerified Claims List Claims List

D. Approve Public Works Seasonal Hire CityClerk/HRDirector Memo

E. Approve Multiple DockLicense Planning Technician Memo
Location: 23500 Smithtown Road
Applicant: Minnetonka Marina

F. Accept Resignation ofPart-TimeAdministrative Assistant
Miechelle Norman andApprove Recruitment CityClerk/HRDirector Memo



CITYCOUNCIL REGULARMEETING AGENDA
Page2

G. Approve Contractor Agreement withEricaHeinrichs, Parks/RecDirector Memo
DailyWellness TaiChi

3. MATTERS FROM THEFLOOR This isanopportunity formembers ofthepublic tobringanitem,  
which isnotontonight'sagenda, totheattention oftheCouncil. Anyone wishing toaddress the
Council should raise theirhand, orifattending remotely please usethe “raisehand” function on
yourscreen andwait tobecalledon. Please make yourcomments fromthepodium andidentify
yourself byyourfirstandlastnameandyouraddress fortherecord.  Please limityourcomments
tothreeminutes.  Nodiscussion oraction willbetakenbytheCouncil onthismatter. If
requested bytheCouncil, Citystaffwillprepare areport fortheCouncil regarding thematter and
place itonthenextagenda.  

4. REPORTS ANDPRESENTATIONS

A. Oktoberfest Presentation byExcelsior Morning RotaryandShorewood Parks/RecDirector

5. PARKS

A.   Amend Chapter 202 (ParkCommission) Planning Director Memo
Adding Oversight ofIPMplan/Maintenance Ordinance 599

Resolution 23-035

6. PLANNING

A. Amend Chapter 1004 (Rental Housing Code) Building Official Memo
Regarding FluesandWoodburning Fireplaces Ordinance 598

Resolution 23-036

7. ENGINEERING/ PUBLIC WORKS

8. GENERAL/ NEWBUSINESS

A. Therapeutic Massage Therapy License Ordinance CityClerk/HRDirector Memo
Ordinance 600

Resolution 23-037

9. STAFF ANDCOUNCIL REPORTS

A. Staff

1. Spring CleanUp/Paper Shred Communications Coordinator Memo

2. TreeSaleUpdate Communications Coordinator Memo



CITYCOUNCIL REGULARMEETING AGENDA
Page3

3.  Water Infrastructure andDelivery CityEngineer Memo

4.  Response toMatters FromtheFloor -  CityEngineer Memo
Eureka Road Improvements

5. Response toMatters FromtheFloor - Planning Director Memo
24835 Yellowstone subdivision

B. Mayor andCityCouncil

10. ADJOURN



2A

CITY OF SHOREWOOD 5755 COUNTRY CLUB ROAD
CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION MEETING COUNCIL CHAMBERS
MONDAY, MARCH 27, 2023 6:00P.M.  

MINUTES

1. CONVENE CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION MEETING

MayorLabadie called themeeting toorderat6:00P.M.  

A. Roll Call

Present.  MayorLabadie; Councilmembers Labadie, Callies, Maddy, andSanschagrin; City
Attorney Shepherd; CityAdministrator Nevinski; Finance Director Rigdon;  
Planning Director Darling; Director ofPublicWorksMorreim; ParkandRecreation
Director Crossfield, andCityEngineer Budde

Absent: Councilmember Johnson

B. Review Agenda

Sanschagrin moved, Callies seconded, approving the agenda aspresented. Motion passed
4/0.   

2. INTEGRATED PEST MANAGEMENT

CityAdministrator Nevinski gaveanoverview oftheprocess thatCityhasfollowed increation of
anIntegrated PestManagement Planandnotedthattheworkplan documents thatwerecreated
tohelpguidetheCityareavailable ontheCity’swebsite. Hestated thatfollowing discussion ata
recentworksession, theplanisatthepointwhere itneeds tobestarted tobeimplemented.  He
notedthatthiswillbealargeundertaking andreminded theCouncil thatthegoalistotryto
balance theparks, fields, community interests, andbudget considerations.  Hestated thatthey
haveputtogether somewhat ofa ‘pilotprogram’ thathasbeenlaidoutinthedraftworkplan.  He
stated thatstaff islooking forfeedback ontheplanandanideaofwhattheCouncil seesastheir
priorities.  Hestated thatstaffhasputtogether anestimated budget, buthasnotgonetomarket,  
sotheyarenotsureiftheywillbeabletohitthedollaramounts asprojected.  Henotedthatstaff’s
intent istoholdsomesortofpublicOpenHouseinordertogetfeedback onthisproposed plan
andthenbytheendofAprilhaveaformalized workplanfortheremainder oftheyear.  He
explained thattheywould thenusetheresultsofthisyearintheworkplanforthefollowing year.  
Hestated thatoneofthings thatwillneedtobedetermined isthecommunity’stolerance forthings
likeweeds, butalsotodetermine what financial resources theCitywillhavetoworkwith.    

RyanAnderson, Sustainable Communities Manager, IPMInstitute ofNorthAmerica, introduced
himself.   

Councilmember Callies stated thatattherecentworksession theCouncil hadtalkedaboutwhat
wouldbeimplemented because theentireplanwouldnotbeimplemented atthistime.  Shestated
thatshedidn’tthink ‘avoiding chemicals’ forthefieldsprovides cleardirection forstaff intermsof
whattheyaresupposed todo.  Shestated thattheresolution saysthattheCitywill ‘gradually



CITY OFSHOREWOOD WORK SESSION COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES
March 27, 2023
Page 2of6

reduce theuseofsystemic pesticides’ andfeelsthereshould besomething moreclearly outlined
forstaff.    

MayorLabadie askedPublicWorksMorreim toaddress thisandaskediftheword ‘avoid’ would
givehiscrewclearenough direction.   

PublicWorksDirector Morreim statedthatthelanguage forthispartisreallyguiding the
contractors.  Hestated thatPublicWorks isnotlicensed toapplychemicals andstated thatthey
arehopeful thattheycanavoidthosechemicals asmuchaspossible togetadesired levelof
service, especially ontheball fieldsbecause theyarehightrafficandhighimpact areaswithin the
parks.    

Councilmember Callies askediftheword ‘avoid’ wouldmakeitcleartothecontractors whatthe
expectations wouldbe.    

PublicWorksDirector Morreim stated thattohim ‘avoid’ means thatchemicals wouldnotbeused.    

Councilmember Callies stated thatshedidnotthinkthatwaswhatthetrueintentwaswithin the
mostrecent resolution.  Shestated thatshedoesthinktheCityneeds toworktowards reducing
useoftheonesthatsay ‘danger’.  Shestated thatshealsofeels thattheremay besome
disagreement aboutwhatchemicals thisisreferring to, forexample RoundUpvs. WeedBGone.    

CityAdministrator Nevinski stated thatonpagesixittalksaboutsomeofthedifferent chemicals
andhowtheyarerated, whichmaybesomething that Mr. Anderson couldreviewmore
thoroughly.  Hebelieves theplansaysitwillavoid chemicals withtheword ‘danger’ whichwould
betheguidance thatPublicWorks director Morreim would thengivetoacontractor.    

Councilmember Callies stated thatsherealizes thatthissounds good, butherrecollection was
thatalmost everything hadawarning, including WeedBGone.  

Mr. Anderson stated that theherbicide thattheCityhasbeenusingiscalledArmorTech, whichis
athree-wayherbicide thatistypically usedinturfgrassmanagement. Heexplained thatnormally
thewarning labelonthistypeofproduct eithersays ‘danger’ or ‘warning’ andtheleast toxicis
labeled ‘caution’.  Hestated thattheyusually typically seethethreewayherbicides usedasa
broadcast whichmeans applying across theentire landscape, sothatwouldnotbeinlinewith
theplanthatistryingtoreducetheiruse.  Heexplained thattheirrecommendation istoreally
focusonthefertilization aspectofitaswellassoilandoverseeding whichhasnotbeenafocus
intheCityforthoseelements.    

Councilmember Sanschagrin askedifhewasrecommending thattheCityusethephrasing ‘don’t
usechemicals thatarelabeled – ‘danger’.    

Mr. Anderson stated thatthiswascorrectandwouldalsorecommend thattheydonotuse
chemicals thatarelabeled ‘warning’ andtousethose labeledas ‘caution’ asalastresort.  He
notedthatwithin theirreport theydiscussed weedtolerance thresholds.  Henotedthatthreeway
herbicides willnotkillgrassbutwillkillbroadleaf weeds.    

Councilmember Callies stated thatshefeelstheuseoftheword ‘don’t’ makes thingsmoreclear,  
butdoesnotagreewiththepremise fortheCityatthispoint intime.  Shestated thatshethought
theCouncil haddecided forthelastresolution thattheCityshouldbeworking towards this, but



CITY OFSHOREWOOD WORK SESSION COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES
March 27, 2023
Page 3of6

cannot saythatthisspringtheCitywill neverusethesechemicals.  Shestated thatshefeltthe
Citycouldsaythattheywillnotdothebroadcast typeofapplication.  

MayorLabadie reminded theCouncil thatthemostrecentBeeSaferesolution hadbeen
distributed tothedais.    

Councilmember Sanschagrin askediftherecouldbeanapproval process withtheintentof
ultimately meeting theBeeSafestandards ofeventually notusingthematall.  Hestated thathe
feelsthatinorder toreach thegoalofnotusing itthereneeds tobesomekindofsystem inplace
ofapprovals forusingitandmeasurements.  Hegavetheexample ofaskingwhenitcanbeused,  
howmuchcanbeused andthenhaving specific goalsthatoutline, hereishowmuchweused
thisyearandnextyeartheCitywillreduce thatbyfiftypercent.    

Councilmember Callies stated thatshedoesnotthinktheCityhasdataaboutwhatwasbeing
donebefore intermsofquantity.  

PublicWorks Director Morreim stated thathedidnothavefirsthandknowledge buthasasked
otherstaffmembers andtheCitydidtreat these areasoneortwotimesperyear, butdidnotknow
theactualquantity ofmaterial thatwasused.  

MayorLabadie stated that theoutside contractor thattheCityusesisnothiredtoinfinityandif
theycannot followtheguidelines setforthbytheCity, theycouldbeletgo.  Shestated that
providing clearguidance tostaffwhocanthenpassitalongtotheindependent contractors and
lettingitbeknown thattheirperformance wouldbereviewed wouldbeadouble safeguard moving
forward.  Shestated thatshelikesthewaythememowaslaidoutwiththefields listed first.    

Councilmember Maddy askedMr. Anderson whattheconsequences wouldbeiftheCity justsaid
notochemicals labeled ‘danger’ andhowmanychemicals would takeoffthetableforpossible
use.    

Mr. Anderson gaveanoverview ofvarious products, theiractive ingredients andtheinert
ingredients thatgoalongside them.  Henotedthattheactive ingredient isnottheonlyfactor in
determining alabelof ‘danger’.    

Councilmember Callies stated thatsheiswondering iftheCityshould reverse thingsandstate,  
thesearethechemicals thatmaybeused’.  

Councilmember Sanschagrin agreed andstated thathewouldalsoliketobespecific abouthaving
alistofchemicals thatwillnotbeusedbecause theyaretootoxicordangers, suchastheones
thatcausecancer.    

Councilmember Callies stated thatshewants tomakesure thatthereisenough clarityprovided
forstaffandcontractors toknowexactly what theycanandcannotdo.  Shegavetheexample of
theCitytreating weeds ‘nomorethantwiceperyear’, forexample.    

Councilmember Maddy stated thatthisisregulating withwords, thatarekindofgeneral, when
theoriginal intentwasremoval ofsystemic insecticides.  Heaskediftheywouldbemorespecific
andexplained thathewasnotasworriedaboutasystemic pesticide, likeaone-timeuse
buckthorn killer thatmetabolizes inthesoilandseemingly justgoesaway.  Hestatedthat the
systemic insecticides whichhavebeenused, hewould liketoseethatspecifically noted.  He



CITY OFSHOREWOOD WORK SESSION COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES
March 27, 2023
Page 4of6

stated that, inhisopinion, hewould liketoseeitjustnotbeusedandseewhathappens.  He
stated thattheywanttomakesurethattheecosystem isnotdamaged inthelong-term.  Hestated
thathebelieves theeasiest approach maybetodirect thecontractors nottouseanychemicals
thatcontain theword ‘danger’ or ‘warning’ andtocometalktotheCityifaneedarises.  

MayorLabadie stated thatsheagreed andwasnotsurethattheCitywanted togetintomicro- 
managing thechemicals.    

Councilmember Callies stated thatshefeltitwouldbeimportant fortheCouncil toknowwhat
chemicals theCityhasbeenusingandwhether theywerelabeledas ‘danger’ or ‘warning’ , so
theycandirect themtoknowwhattochange forfutureuse.   

CityAdministrator Nevinski stated thattherearestandard databases thatcategorize chemicals
intothesetypesofcategories thathave areputtogetherbyOSHA. Hestatedthatusingthose
triggerwords, asdiscussed, theCitycangotothedatabase andseewhatfallsunder there, so
hefeelstherewillbesufficient guidance.  Hestated thathewillverify thatthisinformation is
correctastheyprepareamore finalized workplan.    

Councilmember Calliesstated thatshehopes thisisthebasebecause shefeels thatMr.  
Anderson’sgrouphasamorestringent definition ofthosewords thanperhaps, OSHA.    

Mr. Anderson explained thattherearetwodifferent typesofsignalwordsandnotedthatthelabel
would relate totheEPAandthesafetydatasheetwouldbefromOSHA.  Hestated thatthere
couldbeaproduct thatonOSHA’ssafetydatasheet couldsay ‘danger’ andonalabel fromthe
EPAcouldjustsay ‘warning’.   Heexplained thatOSHArelatesmoretotheworker handling the
itemandnotnecessarily theacute toxicity thattheywouldbetalkingaboutwiththeEPA.   

Councilmember Callies stated that isagoodpointbecause someofthecautions applytothe
applicator versus theenvironment, soshequestioned which theCityshouldbefollowing.    

Mr. Anderson stated thatthey followboth, butnotedthatifoneweretotrumptheother, hewould
saythatwouldbetheEPA.    

Councilmember Callies askedabout thepossibility ofdoingthisfortwoyearsandthentaking
another looktoseewhathappens tothefieldsafterwards.    

Councilmember Sanschagrin stated thathefelttheCitycouldupdate theprocess asitmoves
along.  Hesuggested thattheCouncil planforameeting inthefalltoreview theeffectiveness of
theprogram andthechanges anddiscuss whatcanbedonedifferently nextyear.    

MayorLabadie statedthattheCouncil willdothatandnoted thattheParksCommission also
conducts ParkTours thattheCouncil isinvited toattend.  Shestated thatthiswouldbeagreat
opportunity toseethefieldsandparksfirsthand.    

PublicWorksDirector Morreim stated thathefeelsstaffhasgottendirection andnotedthathe
didnotfeelthiswouldbethelasttimetheCouncil hasthistypeofdiscussion.  Hestated thatthey
intendtohavefairlysignificant conversations withtheathletic associations andwillbegetting
feedback fromthemonthefields.    



CITY OFSHOREWOOD WORK SESSION COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES
March 27, 2023
Page 5of6

Councilmember Callies stated thatnumber sevenrelates toweedabatement andstated thather
recollection ofdiscussion attheretreatwasthattheytalkedaboutbeingabletouseweedkillers
onthecracks inthesidewalk because theCitywon’tbepaying someone tohandpullthoseweeds
everyotherweek.    

PublicWorksDirector Morreim stated thathehaddiscussed thiswithstaffandnotedthathehas
alotofexperience, fromhispast job, doingmoremechanical removal andnotusingchemicals.  
Hestated thattheirplans istobasically seehowitgoeswithmechanical removal andnotedthat
evenifyouputweedkilleronthings, weedswillstillcomeback.    

Councilmember CalliesnotedthatSmithtown Trailhasanimmediate needforthiswork.   

PublicWorksDirector Morreim stated thatareawasspecifically discussed andthehopeisthat
thisareawill lookdifferent thisyear.    

MayorLabadie askedwhatguidance theCouncil would liketogiveonManorPond.  Shenoted
thatstaffisrecommending contracting forthetreatment ofthepondwiththerecommendations
fromIPM.  Shestated thatsheisfine, moving ahead withthisrecommendation.   

Councilmember Callies statedthatshedoesnotlikethelanguage where itsaystheCitywill ‘seek
tocontract’ andwould likeitclearlystated thattheCitywillcontract.  Shestated thatshebelieves
thatthetreatment thatCitywasdoing inthepastdoesnotfallwithin theparameters ofwhat IPM
isrecommending.  

PublicWorksDirector Morreim explained thattherewerepartsofthetreatment where IPMgave
different recommendations for, butbelieves thealumtreatments wereconsidered acceptable.    

MayorLabadie notedthattheCityhasworked on ManorPondforabout tenyearsandwhatthey
havedoneworked, lefttheneighborhood happy, andalsothewildlifehasstarted tocomeback.   
Shestated thatshedoesnotwanttheCitytolosetheprogress thathasbeenmadeonthepond.   
Shenoted thattheCityhadreceived agrant forbuckthorn removalafewyearsagoandhad
received manycomplaints about thebuckthorn inFreeman Parkbecause theCitydecided notto
proceed withthismethod, which istheDNR ‘bestpractice’ method because itincluded daubing
thestumps.  Sheasked iftheCouncil feltcomfortable directing stafftoproceed withfollowing the
DNRbestpractices forBuckthorn removal inFreeman Park.   Shestated thatshewould liketo
seetheCityutilize thisgrantmoneyandgetagoodstartonthebuckthorn.    

Councilmember Maddy stated thathewascomfortable withthatbecause itisaonetimeuse.    

Councilmember Sanschagrin stated thathewouldalsobecomfortable withitifitcouldbedone
duringatimewhenitwasnotwet.    

MayorLabadie notedthatshewouldassume thatthecontractor wouldknowwhattheDNRbest
practices wouldbe, butwasnotsureiftherewererestrictions onthetimeoftheyear.    

Councilmember Callies askedabout thegoats.   

Planning Director Darling stated thatisafollowupitemtomakesure thatthebuckthorn doesnot
comeback.  



CITY OFSHOREWOOD WORK SESSION COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES
March 27, 2023
Page 6of6

MayorLabadie notedthattheCouncil wasalmostoutofmeeting timeandsuggested thatthey
revisit itemnumber fourrelated toBadger Parkandnumber fiverelated toEmerald AshBorerat
afuturemeeting.    

PublicWorksDirector Morreim notedthatdiscussing thosetwoitemsatalaterdatewouldnot
hinder theirability tostarttheothers thisspring.    

Councilmember Maddynotedthathewas okaylettingsomeweedsgrowerringonthesideof
fewerchemicals.  

Councilmember Sanschagrin stated thatheagreed.  

MayorLabadie statedthatsheisonthesameside, however, lastyearnooneapplied forthetwo
seasonal positions.  ShestatedthatiftheCitydoesnothavethemanpower, thingswillnotlook
aspristine.  

3. ADJOURN

Maddy moved, Sanschagrin seconded, Adjourning theCity Council Work Session Meeting
ofMarch 27, 2023, at6:49P.M. Motion passed 4/0.  

ATTEST:             
Jennifer Labadie, Mayor

Sandie Thone, City Clerk



2B

CITY OF SHOREWOOD 5755 COUNTRY CLUB ROAD
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING COUNCIL CHAMBERS
MONDAY, MARCH 27, 2023 7:00P.M.  

MINUTES

1. CONVENE CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

MayorLabadie called themeeting toorderat7:00P.M.  

A. Pledge ofAllegiance

B. Roll Call

Present.  MayorLabadie; Councilmembers Callies, Maddy, andSanschagrin; CityAttorney
Shepherd; City Administrator Nevinski; CityClerk/HRDirector Thone; Finance
Director Rigdon; Planning Director Darling; ParksandRecreation Director
Crossfield; Director ofPublicWorksMorreim; and, CityEngineer Budde

Absent: Councilmember Johnson

C. Review Agenda

Maddy moved, Sanschagrin seconded, approving theagenda aspresented. Motion
passed.  

2. CONSENT AGENDA

MayorLabadie reviewed theitemsontheConsent Agenda.   

Councilmember Calliesaskedabout thePVCpipementioned initem2.Eandwhyitwas
considered achange order.    

CityEngineer Buddeexplained thatductile ironpipehasbeentheCity’sstandard foralongtime.   
Hestated that therearemanyothercommunities thathavetakenonPVCoverthelasttenyears.   
Hestatedthathasaddedsome ‘competition’ withregardtopricing, butnotedthat itisalsoabit
easier toworkwithwhenmaking repairs.  Hestated thatthereareanumber ofbenefits thatcome
outofswitching toPVCpipingversustheironpipe.   

Councilmember Sanschagrin notedthathealsohadquestions about items2.Eand2.F. ofthe
consent agenda andaskediftheycouldberemoved forfurtherdiscussion.    

Maddy moved, Callies seconded, Approving theMotions Contained onthe Consent
Agenda and Adopting theResolutions Therein.    

A. City Council Work Session Minutes ofMarch 13, 2023

B. City Council Regular Meeting Minutes ofMarch 13, 2023



CITY OFSHOREWOOD REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES
MARCH 27, 2023
Page 2of12

C. Approval of theVerified Claims List

D. Approve Professional Services Contract forGarden Care with Mangold
Horticulture

E. Approve Change Order forStrawberry Lane Reconstruction, City Project 19- 
05, Adopting RESOLUTION NO. 23-031  (moved toitem7.A)  

F. Approve Change Order forBirch Bluff Street and Utility Improvements, City
Project 21-01, Adopting RESOLUTION NO. 23-032,  ( moved to7.B)  

G. Approve Permanent Appointment ofJeremy Moe, Light Equipment Operator
Shop Tech

H. Accept Resignation ofCommunity Center Attendant and Approve
Recruitment forPosition

Motion passed.  

3. MATTERS FROM THE FLOOR

GregLarson, 25535Orchard Circle, explained thathewasheretoserveasspokesperson forthe
neighborhood andtodropoffapetition andcopiesofsomee-mailmessages fromresidents who
werenotavailable tosignthepetition regarding Eureka RoadnorthofSmithtown.  Hereadaloud
thelanguage inthepetition regarding thecondition andplansfortheroadway.  Hestated thatthe
roadisfallingapartandtheyfeeltheCityshouldspend someofthemoneysetasideforthe
consulting firmtostudytheprojectandrepair theroad.  Hestated thattheresidents areopposed
tomanyoftheplansfortheroadway thatwereproposed inJanuary suchassidewalks andcurb
andgutter.  Hereferenced theBirchBluffproject which theyfeelwasnotneeded andunwanted
andexplained thattheydidnotwantthesamethingtohappen intheirneighborhood.  He
expressed hisfrustration thatresidents areonlyallowed threeminutes tospeaktotheCouncil
about theirsituation andarenotallowed tohaveaconversation ordialogue withtheCouncil.    

MayorLabadie asked ifCityEngineer Buddewouldbeabletoaddress anyoftheseconcerns.   

CityEngineer Buddeexplained thathewouldbeabletorespond tosomeoftheconcerns raised
byMr. Larsonduring hisupdate laterinthemeeting andcouldalsoputtogether awritten response
forthenextCityCouncil meeting.    

Mr. Larson submitted hispetition toCityAdministrator Nevinski.   

George Greenfield, 24715Yellowstone Trail, stated thathewantedtospeakabout thecontinuing
debacle at24835Yellowstone Trail.  Hereadaloudaportionofthevariance thatwasgranted by
theCity inNovember of2021relatedtolotwidth.  Hestated thathefeelsthattheCityhasa
historyofupholding therightsofdevelopers overtheinterests ofresidents.  Hestated thatit
appears thatmoneyprevailed over justiceandsimple legality inthissituation.  Hestated that
because anincorrect meeting datewaspublished, citizens werenotallowed toparticipate inthe
discussion andnotedthathedidnotthinktheappropriate noticesweresentouttoresidents within
five-hundred feetoftheproject.  Hestated thathedidnotfeelthePlanning Commission paid
attention tothecriteria inthevariance andweresomewhat arrogant anddismissive toresidents.   



CITY OFSHOREWOOD REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES
MARCH 27, 2023
Page 3of12

Hestated thathefeltthattheCouncil needed tohavebetteroversight overtheirstaffbecause he
feelstheymakefrequent errorsandgivemisinformation toresidents.  Hestated thattheCity
shouldalsoimmediately dismiss anymember ofthePlanning Commission whoservedatthetime
thisvariance wasapproved because theywerenotconversant withwhattheyneeded tobein
order todotheir job.  Hestatedthathedidnotmean thepeople thatareatthefrontdeskorthose
thatresidents speakwithonthephonebecause theyhavealways beencourteous andhelpful.    

MayorLabadieaskedPlanning Director Darling toprepareawritten response toMr. Greenfield’s
concerns attheApril10, 2023CityCouncil meeting.    

Amanfromtheaudience declared thathewould liketogivehistimetoMr. Larson.   

MayorLabadie explained thatsinceMr. Larsonwasservingasthespokesperson forhis
neighborhood, shewouldallowhimadditional timetospeak.   

Mr. Larson readaloudsomequotes fromresident interviews thatwereconducted thatare
included intheCity’sComprehensive Plan.  Henotedthat theComprehensive Planhasbeen
described tohimasboththeConstitution andtheBibleoftheCity.    

KirkHonour, 5320LeeCircle, stated thathewasnotawareofthepetition, sohedidnothavea
chance tosignit.  Hestated thatheisopposed tothewidening ofthecul-de-sacinLeeCircle.   
Hestated thathebasically wanted tosaywhatwaswritten intheletterbyMr. Larsonand
explained thatthereasonhemoved totheCity fifteenyearsagowasnotforamodern, planned
community.  Hestated thathelikesthestreets thewaytheyareandwidening themwill losethe
aesthetic oftheCity.  Hestated thathefeelsthestreetsneedmaintenance, butdoesnotfeelthey
needtobewidened andnotedthattheCityseemstobeignoring thecomments fromtheresidents
wholiveontheroadways.    

Diane Tessari, 5375Eureka Road, stated thatshewasabletosignthepetition presented byMr.  
Larson.  Shestated thatshehaslived intheCityforovertwentyyearsandherpartner hasbeen
here formorethanfiftyyears.  Shenotedthattheirhomeandsomeofthetreeshavebeenthere
foroverone-hundred years.  Sheexplained thatshecaresabout cleanair, cleanwater, and
healthy soilandecosystem.  Shestated thatwhenshemovedhereshefoundoutthatShorewood
wasa ‘greencity’ whichmadeherproud, butsincethattimeshehasbecome moreandmore
discouraged bywhatshehasseenintheCity, suchasthecuttingoftreesonStrawberry Lane.  
Shestated thatshehadalsoseenthattheCitydidnotkeep theirpromise whenitcameto
protecting bees.  Shestated thatnowthatsheishereshedoesnotseea ‘greencity’ butinstead
onethatcutsalotoftrees.  Shestated thatshefeelstheCityshouldbemoreresponsible to
futuregenerations andexplained thatshedidnotseethings likecuttingdowntrees, pavingand
widening roadsasbeing ‘green’ andisjustadding toclimate change.  Sheasked theCouncil to
askthemselves howthechildren inthefuturewillbeaffected bythedecisions theyaremaking
today.  

MayorLabadie askediftherewasanyone on-linewhowished tospeak.   

AlanYelsey, 26335PeachCircle (viavideo-conferencing),   stated thathehasbeenaresident
forfortyyearsandsupports everyone whohasspoken thusfarthisevening.  Henotedthatthe
raiseyourhand’ feature wasnotavailable tohimviaZoomthiseveningandaskedforthat issue
tobefixedforfuture meetings.  Hestatedthat inhisopinion, theCitydoesnotseemtowant
comments fromresidents andshared examples.  Hestated thatthelinksincluded inthemeeting



CITY OFSHOREWOOD REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES
MARCH 27, 2023
Page 4of12

information werealsonotworking.  Hestated thathefeelstheCouncil shouldbeencouraging
participation inthemeetings andhefindsitsadthatmostpeopledonotbecause theCouncil does
notmake iteasy.  Hestated thathefeels theyneedtobeabletohavediscussions andhefinds
itoutrageous thatitisnotallowed.   Hestated thathewould liketodiscuss ‘poison’ regarding
buckthorn.  Hestatedthat iftheCitywants toputpoison intheground theywilloppose that.  He
stated thatpeople intheCitywanttheirwater tobepureandcleanandnotcarcinogenic.  He
notedthattheywanttheCitynottousepoisons orsystemic pesticides because thereare
alternatives available, including simplypayinghigherwages.    

ChrisRotunno, 5525Howards PointRoad, stated thathefeelsthatmanyofthecomments made
byMr. Yelsey werenottrue.  Heexplained thattheraisethehandfeature hasworked anddoubts
thattheCitywould takethetimetosingleoutMr. Yelseyandnotallowhimtoraisehishandto
speak.  Hethanked theresidents fortaking thetimetospeak tonight butthinksonethingthatis
oftenoverlooked isthattheCityhashadtheseplansinplaceforyears.  Hestated that these
planshaveinvolved manyopenmeetings wherepeople cancometovoicetheiropinions.  He
stated thatmany peopleareconcerned about thelookandfeeloftheirproperty butheseesthat
therearesafetyconcerns onthesestreets andreminded people thattheyareCity’sproperty.  He
notedthathefeelsthesetypesofdecisions areonly beingmadebecause ofthesafetyofthe
community.  Henotedthattheyallhadtreesthatweretakendownsotheirownhomescouldbe
built.  Hestated thathefeels liketheresidents whohavespoken tonightaretaking theirhatchets
outtryingtogoaftertheCityformaking planstomake theroadssafer.    

MayorLabadie thanked theresidents fortaking thetimetoaddress theCouncil andexplained
thatwhenthingsarescheduled forpublic hearingsorlistedontheagenda, morerobustdiscussion
willoccur.  Shenotedthatcomments during publichearings donothaveatimelimit.    

4. REPORTS AND PRESENTATIONS

5. PARKS

A.  Report byCommissioner Levy onMarch 14, 2023 Parks Commission Meeting

ParksCommissioner Levygaveanoverview ofthediscussion andactions takenattheMarch 14,  
2023ParkCommission meeting.   

B. 2023 Park Commission Work Program

ParkandRecreation Director Crossfield gaveanoverview ofthe2023ParkCommission Work
Program recently approved bytheParkCommission.   

MayorLabadie notedthattheParkCommission holdsparktours throughout thesummer months
thatareopentothepublic.    

6. PLANNING

A. Report byCommissioner Holker onMarch 7, 2023 Planning Commission
Meeting

Planning Commissioner Holkergaveanoverview onthediscussion andactions takenatthe
March7, 2023Planning Commission meeting.   



CITY OFSHOREWOOD REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES
MARCH 27, 2023
Page 5of12

Councilmember Sanschagrin stated thatthemeeting minutes indicate that theitemthatthe
Planning Commission hadrecommended fordenialwouldbediscussed attonight’sCouncil
meeting, however itisnotontheagenda fortonight.   

Planning Director Darlingexplained thattheapplicant hadmadeachangetothesiteplanwhich
wassignificant enough thatitneeded togobacktothePlanning Commission forreviewpriorto
being forwarded totheCouncil.    

B. Variance toSide Yard Setback
Location:  28170 Woodside Road
Applicant:  Kyle Hunt and Partners, Inc.  

Planning Director Darlinggaveanoverview oftherequest foraside-yardsetbackvariance to
allowanewhometobeconstructed ontheproperty locatedat28170Woodside Road.  Staffand
thePlanning Commission recommend approval, subject totheconditions included inthe
resolution.    

Councilmember Sanschagrin asked foranexplanation oftheactual variance request
measurements.   

Planning Director Darling statedthat thevariance istothecombined side-yardsetback onlots
thataredirectly abuttingalakewhichmeans thetwoside-yardsetbacks needtohaveatotalof
thirty feet.    

Councilmember Sanschagrin askedaboutproperty locatedat28180Woodside Roadandnoted
thathehadnotseenanycomments fromthemontheapplication.  Heaskediftheyhadbeen
contacted during thisprocess.    

Planning Director Darling stated thattheywerenotifiedoftherequest, buttheCitydidnotreceive
anycorrespondence fromthem. Shenotedthatshebelieved thatthey spokedirectly tothe
property owner.     

KyleHunt, 18324Minnetonka Boulevard, stated thattheybuilt thehomefortheneighbor about
twelveyearsago.  Hestated thattheyhadafulldiscussion with themattheirofficeandwalked
themthrough theplandetails forthishomeandtheydidnothaveanyproblems withit.  He
explained thatDr. Patrick Carney, theowner, andhisarchitect arealsopresent tonight ifthe
Council hasanyquestions forthem.    

Maddy moved, Sanschagrin seconded, Adopting RESOLUTION NO. 23-033, “AResolution
Approving aSide-Yard Setback Variance forProperty Located at28170 Road.” Motion
passed.  

C. Final Plat and Development Agreement forMaple Shores
Location; 20430 Radisson Road
Applicant:  Chamberlain Capital, LLC

Planning Director Darling gaveanoverview oftheproposal forasevenunitsubdivision called
MapleShores.  ShenotedthattheCouncil hadpreviously approved aconcept anddevelopment
planaswellasapreliminary plat.  Shenoted thatthemajorityofthechanges sincethat timehave



CITY OFSHOREWOOD REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES
MARCH 27, 2023
Page 6of12

been generally smallandtechnical.  Shenoted thatthedeveloper hasaskedforaclustered
mailbox whichshehadnotincluded inherreportandwould liketoaddthatasanacceptable use
under item26.Kofthedevelopment agreement.     

Councilmember Maddy askedabouttheup-lightinthebollards andexpressed concern thatthis
maynotmeettheCity’slighting ordinance standards.   

Planning Director Darling stated thatshecantakeanother looktoensure itisconsistent.  She
stated that theCouncil could includeacondition intheresolution thatsaysitwouldneedto
conform totheCityordinance requirements.    

Councilmember Sanschagrin stated thattherearealotofconditions included andaskedhowthe
Cityensures thatthose conditions aremet.   

Planning Director Darling explained thatwiththeresolution andthedevelopment agreement, she
goesthrough eachonewhentheplanscomein.  Shenotedthatshecolorcodesthemsoshe
cantellataglancewhichonesaremetandwhichoneshavenotbeenmet.    

Councilmember Callies askedabout theutilities mentioned inthereportbyCityEngineer Budde.   

CityEngineer Buddeexplained thatthedevelopment would extend watermain across Highway
7fromthenorthsideandwhenitgetstoRadisson Road, itwillrunabout threehundred feetto
thenortheast whichwouldallowresidents ontheopposite sideofthestreet toconnect tothe
watermain atsomepoint inthefuture.    

Councilmember Callies asked about thepossibility oftearinguptheroadsthatwasmentioned in
number eight..   

CityEngineer Buddeexplained thatwasintended sothatifthewatermain weretoextend tothe
westonRadisson RoadthattheCitywouldnothavetogodigupthestreet thatwasjustbuilt.  He
stated thattheywanttomakesurethatthestubsarefarenough away fromthestreetsotheyare
notdoinganydamage totheminthefuture.  

Councilmember Callies referenced thedevelopment agreement andaskedsomeclarifying
questions about thecontent.    

Councilmember Sanschagrin askedforanexplanation of ‘dewatering’.   

Planning Director Darlingstated thatdewatering isessentially whenyouaredigging downinto
theground andthegroundwater ishighandyouhavetoremove thegroundwater fromaspecific
area.    

Councilmember Callies askedaboutsitecleanupandnotedthatshebelieves theCity shouldbe
morespecific abouthowoftentheyshould becleaning up.    

Planning Director Darling stated thattheycouldaddmorelanguage butnotedthattypically they
require cleanupatleastonceadaywhen theyarehauling andmassgrading, orasdirected.  



CITY OFSHOREWOOD REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES
MARCH 27, 2023
Page 7of12

PaulCameron, 3918WilmatHill, Minnetonka, stated thathewillbearesident inthisdevelopment.   
Henotedthattypically theyhavethestreetsweeping bobcats thatgooutandcleanup.  Hestated
thattheyhaveasitemanager whowillbethereonsiteeveryday.    

Councilmember Callies stated thatshefeltthatthereshould belanguage related tothefrequency
ofcleanup included intheagreement.   

CityEngineer Buddestated thatthereareinspections thattheCityconducts asthedevelopment
ishappening, sostaffareawareandonsiteeverydayaswell.    

Planning Director Darling notedthattheCouncil couldalsodirectstaff toaddanother paragraph
toaddress Councilmember Callie’sconcerns.   

Councilmember Callies stated thatHOAdocuments listthecommon properties andinclude the
access tothebathing beachonLot #11.  Sheaskediftheapplicant hadfurther communications
withtheadjacent property owner, Mr. HitlerandMs. Watts.    

Mr. Cameron stated thathehadcoffee withMs. Watts andhashadpositive discussions.  He
stated thatthereisacollaboration attempt goingontoresolve theTorrens property issues that
arepresent, buthedoesnothaveanything toreportonthoseeffortsandnotedthatthereshould
benothing thatisrelevant tothisagreement.   Heexplained thattheyarelookingatLot #11as
being analogous toapoolwhere theownership oftheassociation hasnothing todowithit, but
doeshave theability tocontrol thebehaviors ofthesevenunitsonthatproperty.    

Callies moved, Labadie seconded, Adopting RESOLUTION NO. 23-034, “AResolution
Approving aFinal Plat forMaple Shores forProperty Located at20430 Radisson Road and
Four Adjacent Vacant Properties”, with the addition oflanguage related tocluster
mailboxes and more specificity regarding the frequency ofclean-up, asdiscussed.  

Councilmember Maddy notedthathehadlookeduptheinformation related tolighting andtheirs
shouldbewithin theCitystandards, butcautioned thattheneighbors maynotlikeuplighting on
thebollards.    

Mr. Cameron explained thattheyareintended tobelikewhatyouseeinaresortareawhere
peoplecanwalkandisdefinitely downlighting.  Henotedthatthelight ismeant togo ‘out’ seven
feetandnot ‘up’ seven feet.   Hestated thattheintent isforpeople tobeabletowalkfromthe
cartothefrontdoorofeachunitwith thelighting.     

Motion passed.  

D. 2023 Planning Commission Work Program

Planning Director Darling gaveanoverview oftheproposed 2023Planning Commission Work
Program.    

Councilmember Callies asked ifeverything hadbeensubmitted totheMetCouncil.   

Planning Director Darling explained thattheMetCouncil hadgiven theCityaletterof
incompleteness andthereareafewtweaks thatneedtohappen withseweragreements with



CITY OFSHOREWOOD REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES
MARCH 27, 2023
Page 8of12

surrounding citiesthattheywould liketohaveinthetextoftheComprehensive Plan.  Shenoted
thatthestaffwerehoping tobeabletohaveitbacktothemveryshortly.   

7. ENGINEERING/ PUBLIC WORKS

A.  Approve Change Order for Strawberry Lane Reconstruction, City Project 19-05,  
Adopting RESOLUTION NO. 23-031,   (moved fromConsent Agenda item2.E)  

B.  Approve Change Order forBirch Bluff Street and Utility Improvements, City
Project 21-01, Adopting RESOLUTION NO. 23-032, ( moved fromConsent Agenda item
2.F)  

CityEngineer Buddestated thatboth ofthese items werelooking tochange thematerial ofthe
watermain pipethatwasproposed.  Hestatedthatbothoftheprojects werebidinthefallof2022
andfollowing morerecentdiscussions withstaff, theyhaddiscussions about theductile ironpipe
whichhassomeissueswithcorrosion whichPVCdoesnothave.    Hestated thatinthelong
term, thehopeisthatusingPVCpipingwillhelpreduce someofthewatermain breaksdueto
corrosion.  Hestated thatusingPVCresults incostsavings ofabout $38,000forStrawberry Lane
andalsoresult incostssavings fortheBirchBluff project.  Henoted thatPublic Workshas
indicated thattheypreferworking withPVCwhengiventheoptionbecause itdoesnotrequire
additional equipment tomovethepipearound.    

Councilmember Sanschagrin askediftherewereanyconsassociated withusingPVCpiping.  

CityEngineer Buddestated thattheyhavenotfoundmany, butnotedthattheyarenotasrobust
asductile ironpiping, soiftheyarelayingaroundonthesiteandgothitbyapieceofequipment,  
itcouldbreakmoreeasily.  Hestated thattherearealotofprostomaking thischange inmaterial
andnotverymanycons.    

Councilmember Sanschagrin askedifstaffhaddoneresearch withothercitieswhohaveused
thePVCmaterial.   

CityEngineer Budde explained thatalotofcitiespreferPVCanddonotwanttodealwithductile
ironpipesbecause itisheavyandhasissueswithcorrosion.    

Councilmember Sanschagrin askedifstaffthought theremaybeotheropportunities forcost
savings forthesetwoprojects.   

CityEngineer Buddestated thatthisisauniqueonethatitdoesnotreallychange thequalityof
anything thattheyaredoing.  Hestated thattherewouldobviously be costsavings iftheCity
werewillingtoreduce thequality.     

Sanschagrin moved, Maddy seconded, Adopting RESOLUTION NO. 23-031, “AResolution
toApprove Change Order No. 1forStrawberry Lane; City Project 19-05.”  Motion passed.   

Callies moved, Maddy seconded, Adopting RESOLUTION NO. 23-032, “AResolution to
Approve Change Order No. 1forBirch Bluff Road; City Project 21-01.” Motion passed.  

8. GENERAL/NEW BUSINESS



CITY OFSHOREWOOD REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES
MARCH 27, 2023
Page 9of12

9. STAFF AND COUNCIL REPORTS

A. Staff

ParksandRecreation Director Crossfield noted thatthePotofGoldeventhadconcluded andhad
oversixtyparticipants.  Shestated thattheywenttomorethanoneparksothiswasagoodevent
toencourage people togetoutandexplore theCity’sparks.  Sheexplained thattheresidents will
soonhaveanewhealthandwellness amenity intheareawithMinnetonka purchasing TheMarsh,  
andexplained that theyhaveopened upmembership tonon-residents.  Shestated thatthis
means residents canhavememberships atTheMarsh, Williston, orboth, beginning inMay.  She
stated thatshewillbesharing someinformation onthisamenity ontheCity’swebsite andsocial
mediaaccounts.    

MayorLabadie askedabout theevent thatwasheldattheMinnetonka HighSchool thatCitystaff
hadattended.   

PublicWorksDirector Morreim statedthattheyarewaiting forthesnowtomeltsotheycanget
goingonsweeping.  Henotedthattheyhadstartedpotholepatching withhotmixlastweek.    

Councilmember Callies mentioned VineHillRoadandnotedthatthere isabigholethatsomebody
hastofillabouteveryotherday.    

PublicWorksDirector Morreim explained thatistheresponsibility oftheCityofMinnetonka
because itisduetoawatermain break, sotheyhavenothadachance topermanently restore
thatarea.  Hestated thatwhen theCityreceives callsabout ittheyletthemknowandtheCityof
Minnetonka hasbeenfairlyresponsive andagreed thatitisnotagreatspotforroadconditions.   
Hestated thathalfoftheroadistheCity’sandhalfbelongs totheCityofMinnetonka, sothey
eachpatchtheportion thatistheirs.    

CityEngineer Buddestated thathecanshareafewthoughts related tothecomments made
duringMatters fromtheFloor.  Hestated thatwhenitrelates toEureka Roadandthelarger
projects thattheCitydoeswhere theyareintending tocomeinandmakemajor repairs tothe
streetsotheydonothavetocomebacktoitforgenerations.  Heexplained that theylookatthese
asfortyorfiftyyearfixes, whichtohimmeans itisabitshort-sighted tojustgofixthepavement.   
Hestated thatifthethought isthattheydonotwanttogobacktotheareaforfortyorfiftyyears,  
itishisduediligence toatleast takeastepbackandlookatsomeoftheplanning documents
thathavebeeninplace, suchasthe2011TrailPlanthatdoesidentifyasidewalk ortrailgoingup
Eureka toBirchBluff.  Hestated thatheunderstands theconcerns raisedbytheresidents inthe
area, buthestillbelieves itisintheCity’sbest interest togothrough theprocess andengage the
residents onwhether ornottheCityshouldputinasidewalk withthisproject.  Hestated thatcurb
andgutterhadbeendiscussed, buthewasnotsurethings hadreallyevengotten tothatpoint
yet.  Henotedthattheyhavenotreallystarted doinganyofthepublicengagement yetforthis
project butwerehoping tohaveinformation available ontheCitywebsite sometime inApriland
notedthattherewillbepublicmeetings onthisproject.  Henotedthatwhen residents contact him
hehasbeenencouraging themtoreachouttotheCityCouncil because theyaretheoneswho
needtoheartheirvoicesandopinions.    

MayorLabadie askedifthepublicengagement would includeanopenhouseortownhall.   



CITY OFSHOREWOOD REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES
MARCH 27, 2023
Page 10of12

CityEngineer Buddestatedthatitwould includeatleastoneofthattypeofmeeting andnoted
thattherewould alsobetheopportunity forsomeon-lineengagement sopeople canprovide
comments.    

Councilmember Callies stated thatthesearejustproposed plansandtheCityneeds tobudget
aheadandinvestigate thepossibilities.  Shestated thatshefeelsthisisallpartofappropriate
planning onthepartoftheCity.    

MayorLabadie notedthatshefeltitwas important topointoutthattheonly thingthathasbeen
approved orhadvotedonwasthescoping study.  Shestated thatnodecisions havebeenmade
beyond thatinitial step.  

1. Mill Street Trail Update

Planning Director Darling gaveanupdate ontheMillStreetTraildesign andreviewed the
feasibility studyconducted in2013.  Sheexplained thatHennepin Countyhadcontacted theCity
in2017/2018toinformtheCitythatExcelsior wasalsolooking atafeasibility studyforthesame
projectandwanted totakebothstudies through thepublicprocess.  Shestated thatwasbegun
in2018, butnotedthattheprojectwassloweddownabitbecause ofCOVID-19.  Shenotedthat
theystarted working onthisproject onceagainaboutayearagoasajointeffort involving
Hennepin County, Carver County, Excelsior, Chanhassen, andShorewood.  Sheexplained that
theyarelookingattwopossible alternatives andnotedthatthesehadbeenshared withthePark
Commission attheir lastmeeting.  Shestatedthattheseoptionsshould beshared withthe
residents atafewdifferent events inApril.  Shestatedthattheyarelookingatscoping theaddition
ofawatermain alongMillAvenue because theCityhashadquiteafewrequests forwaterservice
inthatarea.  Shebrieflydescribed eachtrailoptionaswellasthepossible advantages and
disadvantages witheachdesign.    

Planning Director Darling gaveabriefsynopsis ofthevariance request thatwaspreviously
approved onYellowstone.   Shestated thatpreviously, theCityhadreceived arequest to
subdivide oneproperty intotwoproperties whichhadbeenplattedastwolotsinabout1956.  She
stated thatadeveloper wasproposing tosplit theparcel intotwolotsalongthesameproperty
lines, butwhenstaffwasreviewing theapplication, staffhadnoticed thattheeasterly lotwas
between threeandfourinchesshortofordinance requirements.  Shestatedthattheyproposed
thattheapplicant move thelotlineorrequestavariance inorder tokeeptheprevious legal
description.  Shenotedthattheapplicant applied foravariance thatwent through thePlanning
Commission andnotedthatnotices weresenttotheneighborhood.    

CityAdministrator Nevinski stated thatstaffwasrecently attheMinnetonka HighSchool forthe
Volunteer andJobFair.  Hestated thathefeelsthatparticipating inthiseventwasagreatsuccess
andtheyreceived alotofinterest.    

B. Mayor and City Council

Councilmember Sanschagrin attended theParkCommission meeting andtheLMCCSummit
meeting.  Heexpressed hisappreciation foralltheresidents whocameandspokeattonight’s
meeting.  Hestatedthathethinks theCitymayneedtotakealookatEureka overall and
reconsider thatportionoftheCIP.    



CITY OFSHOREWOOD REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES
MARCH 27, 2023
Page 11of12

Councilmember Callies statedthatthescoping document islooking atwhatalloftheoptions may
be.  SheaskedifCouncilmember Sanschagrin wassaying thattheCitycouldsaveacertain
amountofmoneybyeliminating thesidewalk now.    

Councilmember Sanschagrin stated thathehasreceived phonecallsfromresidents and, likethey
shared, theyjustwanttheroadrepaved.    

MayorLabadie stated thatmaynotbetheopinionofalloftheresidents soputting itintoanopen
townhalloropenhouse formatafter theCityhasgotten theopinionoftheprofessionals isthe
correct wayfortheCitytomakethemosteducated decision.  Shestatedthatshefeels thisisa
generational decision thatneeds tobemadewithcourage andnotemotion.    

Councilmember Maddy stated thatheattended theExcelsior FireDistrict working session meeting
where theyworked onbudget issues.    

Councilmember Calliesaskedabout thewaytheCouncil washandling response topublic
comments.  Sheexplained thatitfeelsabitfunny toherthatpeople raiseconcerns andnowat
theendofthemeeting, staff responds, after those individuals havealready gonehome.  She
statedthatsheunderstands thattheCouncil cannotgetintoabackandforthconversation or
debate duringpublic comment, butthisseemsoddtoherthatstaff isresponding tothequestions
thatwereraisedattheendofthemeeting, butthepeople whoasked themwerenotpresent.  She
stated thatshewould liketheCouncil tofindanotherwaytohandle this.    

Mayor Labadie explained thatshefeltthereasoning behind itwasthatdoingitattheendofthe
meeting wouldallowstafftogiveasuccinct response inasituation where therearetenresidents
whohadthesamequestion.  Shestated thatsheagreed thattheCouncil shoulddiscuss
procedure moving forward andnotedthat therearequiteafewbrand-newstaffmembers aswell
asnewCouncilmembers.  Shestated thatshebelieves thattherehadbeenasuggestion that
things likethisbeplacedonaworksession fordeeper discussion.   

CityAdministrator Nevinski stated thatthisisatopicthatisalready scheduled foranupcoming
worksession.  

Councilmember Callies stated thatshedoesnotwantstaffortheCouncil tobeputonthespotin
thosesituations whentheydonotknowwhatpeoplewillbebringing up, butreiterated that
something justdidnotfeelrightabout thewayitwascurrently beinghandled.    

MayorLabadie stated thatshewascontacted lastweekbyRepresentative LucyRehmtotestify
infrontoftheHouse Transportation/Finance Committee regarding HF2361.  Shestated thatshe
believes theCityneeded tocontinue working withtheState leaders inordertogetthesafety
concerns surrounding Highway 7addressed.  Shenotedthatshecansharealinktohertestimony
withanyone interested.    

10. ADJOURN

Sanschagrin moved, Callies seconded, Adjourning theCity Council Regular Meeting of
March 27, 2023, at8:55P.M.    

Motion passed.  



CITY OFSHOREWOOD REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES
MARCH 27, 2023
Page 12of12

ATTEST:             
Jennifer Labadie, Mayor

Sandie Thone, City Clerk



























CityCouncilMeetingItem

ItemTitle/Subject:   ApprovePublicWorksSeasonalHireWillFoster
2DMeetingDate:  April10, 2023

Preparedby:   SandieThone, CityClerk/HumanResources Director
Reviewedby:   MattMorreim, PublicWorksDirector
Attachments:   None

Background:  OnFebruary27, 2023CityCouncilapproved therecruitment fortwoPublicWorks
Seasonalpositions.  EachyearthePublicWorksdepartment hirestemporary seasonalworkers
whoperform maintenance inthecity’sparksandotherdutiesasassigned.  OnFriday, February

th24, Staffinterviewed candidateWillFosterfortheseaonal position.  Will isaMarquette
University student, majoring inPublicRelations, andaScholarship athleteontheMarquette
University’sMen’sLacrosse team.  WilllivesinShorewood intheoff-collegeseason.  Willhas
experience atBayside Marine, asanAthleticTrainer, andcoachingyouthlacrosse.  Willenjoys
workingaspartofateamandespecially enjoysworking outdoors.    

FinancialConsiderations: Asdelineated belowandplannedforinthe2023Budget.    

ActionRequested: Staffrespectfully recommends thecitycouncilapproveWillFoster’s
appointment asPublicWorksSeasonal working full-timeattherateof $18.00perhour.  This
temporary, seasonalposition isnoteligibleforbenefits andisexemptundertheseasonal185- 
calendar daylimitforPERA.  Will’sexpectedstartdatewillbemid-to-lateMay, dependent onhis
Lacrossescheduleandreturnfromcollege.    

Motion, secondandsimplemajorityvoterequired.    

Connection toVision/Mission: Consistency inproviding residentsqualitypublicservices, a
sustainable taxbase, andsoundfinancialmanagement througheffective, efficient, and
visionary leadership.       

MissionStatement:  TheCityofShorewood iscommitted toproviding residents qualitypublic
services, ahealthy environment, avarietyofattractive amenities, asustainable taxbase, and
sound financial management through effective, efficient, andvisionary leadership.  Page1







CityCouncilMeetingItem

ItemTitle/Subject:   AcceptResignation ofPart-TimeAdministrative Assistant
2FandApprove Recruitment forPosition

MeetingDate:  April10, 2023
Preparedby:   SandieThone, CityClerk/HumanResources Director
Reviewedby:   MarcNevinski, CityAdministrator
Attachments:   2023CityCompensation Schedule

Background:  Staffreceived theresignation ofPart-TimeAdministrative AssistantMiechelle
Normanonmarch29, 2023, effective April14, 2023.  Miechelle hasbeenanimportantpartof
theAdministrative team, goingaboveandbeyondinsupporting themanyrolesintheposition
andfillinginforvariousvacantpositionsduringhertimehere.  Miechelle hasprovedagreat
employee andmemberoftheteamandwillbemissed.  Shewilbepursuingafull-time
opportunity andwewishhertheverybest!  

InaletterreceivedbyMiechelle, sheexpressed gratitude fortheopportunity toworkforthe
Cityandwhatawonderful experience ithasbeen.  Sheexplainedhowmuchshevaluesallof
therelationships shehasbuilt.  Sheishopingshecancontinueservingasanelection judgeand
helpingoutwithcommunity events!    

Miechelle hasworkedinthecapacityofPart-TimeAdministrative Assistant sinceJulyof2021.  
Sheworks20hoursperweekandherrateofpayis $20.57perhour.  TheCityhasemployeda
parttimeadministrative staffpositionformanyyearsinadditiontothefull-timestaff.  The
positionsupports theCityHallfunctions mainlyatthefrontdeskandisalsoinvolved in
electionsduringanelectionyear.  Theposition performs variusduties including customer
serviceatthefrontcounter, onthetelephone andviaemail, openingandclosingCityHall,  
issuingbuildingpermits, scheduling inspections, receipting payments andprocessing utilitybills,  
openinganddistributing mail, scanningdocuments intoLaserfich, andvariousother
administrative responsibilities.    

WithMiechelle’sdeparture andtherecruitment oftheposition, staffisrequesting council
consider increasing theposition’spaygradetomakeitmoreinlinewithadministrative, front
deskpositions innearbyorsimilar cities.  AsdiscussedattheCouncil/StaffRetreat inFebruary,  
someofourpositionsarenotcurrentlyalignedwithtoday’smarketandthispositionin
particular isonethatisattheverylowendofthemarket.  Pleaseseethecomparison below
usedtoproposethe “new” positionsalaryrangeinrecruiting fortheposition.   

MissionStatement:  TheCityofShorewood iscommitted toproviding residents qualitypublic
services, ahealthy environment, avarietyofattractive amenities, asustainable taxbase, and
sound financial management through effective, efficient, andvisionary leadership.  Page1



Theposition iscurrently classified onthecity’scompensation schedule asGrade3witha2023
payrangeof $15.43to $23.14perhour.    

Shorewood       $ 15.43to $23.14perhour

Comparison City 2023PayRange
Bloomington       $ 28.48to $30.21perhour
Deephaven       $ 25.88to $33.71perhour
Excelsior       $ 20.00to $25.00perhour
LittleCanada       $ 25.52to $31.93perhour
Minnetrista       $ 26.17to $34.48perhour
Minnetonka        $ 27.80to $30.89perhour

Staffproposes theposition beupgraded toGrade5withasalary rangeof $21.59to $26.99per
hour.    

Ifcouncil approves theproposed salary gradeofGrade5, itwouldbeapplied toboththefulltime
andpart timeadministrative assistant positions.  Ifapproved, ourcurrent full-timeadministrative
assistant position would fallbelow thepaygrade, asshecurrently iscompensated at $21.85
hourly andhasbeenworking attheCityinthiscapacity forfouryears, sinceMarchof2019.  We
would therefore askthatcouncil approve apayincrease forthecurrent person working full-time
inthiscapacity toGrade5, StepDofthepayscaleto $24.29perhourforthisposition.      

Financial Considerations: Theimpact oftheproposed increase tothe2023personnel budget for
thepart timeposition wouldbeapproximately $630overtheremainder oftheyear.  Theimpact
oftheproposed salary increase tothe2023personnel budget forcurrent full-timepositon would
beapproximately $3,416overtheremainder oftheyear.  Bothproposed increases havebeen
discussed andcouldbeabsorbed inthebudget forthisyearduetothetimemanypositions were
leftvacant.       

Action Requested: Staff respectfully recommends thecitycouncil accept Miechelle Norman’s
resignation andapprove recruitment forreplacement ofherposition asPart-TimeAdministrative
Assistant ataGrade5ontheCity’sCompensation Schedule witharange of $21.59to $26.99per
hour.    

Inaddition, staff respectively recommends thecitycouncil approve theupgrade oftheFull-Time
Administrative Assistant position toGrade5ontheCity’sCompensation Schedule andapprove
thehourly salary increase toGrade5, StepD $24.29perhour.    

Motion, second andsimple majority voterequired.    

Connection toVision/Mission: Consistency inproviding residents quality public services, a
varietofattractive amenities, asustainable taxbase, andsound financial management through
effective, efficient, andvisionary leadership.       





CityCouncilMeetingItem

ItemTitle/Subject:   Contractor Agreement withEricaHeinrichs
2GMeetingDate:  Monday, April10, 2023

Preparedby:   JanelleCrossfield, ParksandRecreation Director
Reviewedby:   MarkNevinski, CityAdministrator
Attachments:   ParksandRecreation Independent Contractor Agreement

Background:  
EricaHeinrichs isaCertified InstructorandSeniorTrainerofTaiChiforHealthPrograms.  
Shorewood ParksandRecreation isexcitedtoofferTaiChiprogramming forthecommunity as
TaiChihasmanyhealthbenefits. TaiChiisagreatfitnessoptionforawiderangeof
participants astheslowandgentlemovingmeditation addresses musclesstrength, flexibility,  
balanceandpromotesmentalhealth. TaiChialsohassomeaerobicbenefits.  

FinancialorBudgetConsiderations:  Instructor feeswillbecoveredbyregistration fees.   

ActionRequested:   
Staffrespectfully recommends theCityCouncil approve theindependent contractor
agreement. Approvaloftheagreement includes anyfutureaddenda executedbetweenthe
contractor andParksandRecreation Director through 2023. Addendaoutlinesprogramlogistics
suchaslocation, dates, times, programfeesandnoclassdays, andprogramdescription.  

MissionStatement:  TheCityofShorewood iscommitted toproviding residents qualitypublic
services, ahealthy environment, avarietyofattractive amenities, asustainable taxbase, and
sound financial management through effective, efficient, andvisionary leadership.  Page1





CITYOFSHOREWOOD
COUNTYOFHENNEPIN
STATEOFMINNESOTA

ORDINANCE 599

ANORDINANCE APPROVING ANAMENDMENT TO
SHOREWOOD CITYCODECHAPTER 202

RELATED TOTHEPOWERS ANDDUTIESOFTHEPARKCOMMISSION

THECITYCOUNCIL OFTHECITYOFSHOREWOOD, MINNESOTA, ORDAINS:    

SECTION1:  AMENDMENT.  ThattheMunicipal CodeofShorewood, Minnesota, Chapter202 (Park
Commission).  Section202.04 (PowersandDuties), isherebyamendedassetforthbelowbyaddingthe
underlined languageanddeletingthestricken/crossedoutlanguageasfollows:  

202.04 POWERSANDDUTIES.   

TheCommission isdesignated thefollowing responsibilities:  
Subd. 1. Consider, review, reportandadviseonallmatterswhichtheCouncilmayrefertothe
Commission;  
Subd. 2. Plan, onalong-termbasis, forthefutureparkandrecreational needsofthecityand
recommend totheCouncilafeasiblemeansoffinancing thelong-termrequirements;  
Subd. 3. Recommend totheCouncil operating policiesandprocedures foruseofexistingparks;   
Subd. 4. OnorbeforeJuly15ofeachyear, dDevelopandrefertotheCouncilarecommended
operational andcapital improvement budgetforparksfortheensuingyear;  
Subd. 5. SubmittothePlanningCommission comments onanyproposed subdivisions, asthe
samemayormaynotaffectthecity’sparkandplayground requirements.   
Subd. 6. Reviewparkmaintenance andprovidecomments totheCouncilonthemaintenance
program’soveralleffectiveness inmanaging parkandopenspaceamenities.    

Section2. EFFECTIVE DATE. ThisOrdinance 599adopting theAmendments toCityCode, Chapter202,  
ParkCommission shalltakeeffectuponpassageandpublication intheCity'sofficialnewspaper.  

ADOPTED BYTHECITYCOUNCIL oftheCityofShorewood, Minnesota, this10thdayof
April, 2023.  

Jennifer Labadie, Mayor

ATTEST:  

Sandie Thone, CityClerk



CITYOFSHOREWOOD
COUNTY OFHENNEPIN
STATE OFMINNESOTA

RESOLUTION 23-035

ARESOLUTION APPROVING THEPUBLICATION OF
ORDINANCE 599REGARDING CITYCODE ORDINANCE

AMENDMENTS RELATED TOTHEPOWERS ANDDUTIES OFTHEPARK COMMISSION

WHEREAS, atadulycalled meeting onMarch 27, 2023, theCityCounciloftheCityof
Shorewood adopted Ordinance No. 599entitled “ANORDINANCE APPROVING AN
AMENDMENT TOSHOREWOOD CITY CODE CHAPTER 202RELATED TOTHEPOWERS AND
DUTIES OFTHEPARK COMMISSION”; and
WHEREAS, theCityCouncil adopted alengthy ordinance amending CityCodeChapter 202.  
04 (Powers andDuties) which contains alistofduties fortheParkCommission and theCity
Council hasapproved anadditional dutyregarding parkmaintenance andtheeffectiveness fo
theparkprogram’soverall effectiveness inmanaging parkandopenspace amenities; and
WHEREAS, thepurpose ofthissummary istoinform thepublic oftheintentandeffectofthe
ordinance buttopublish onlyasummary oftheordinance with thefullordinance beingonfilein
theofficeoftheCityClerkduring regular officehoursandavailable onthecity’swebsite.  

NOW THEREFORE, ITISHEREBY RESOLVED BYTHECITYCOUNCIL OFTHECITYOF
SHOREWOOD:  

1. TheCityCouncil findsthattheabove titleandsummary ofOrdinance No. 599clearly
informs thepublicoftheintentandeffectoftheOrdinance.  

2. TheCityClerk isdirected topublish Ordinance No. 599bytitleandsummary, pursuant
toMinnesota Statutes, Section 412.191, Subdivision 4. Suchsummary istobe
substantially thesame astheattached ordinance.  

3. AfullcopyoftheOrdinance isavailable atShorewood CityHallandonthecity’s
website.  

THAdoptedbytheCityCouncilofShorewood, Minnesota this10 dayofApril, 2023.  

Jennifer Labadie, Mayor
Attest:  

Sandie Thone, CityClerk







ORDINANCE 598

CITYOFSHOREWOOD
COUNTY OFHENNEPIN
STATE OFMINNESOTA

ANORDINANCE APPROVING ANAMENDMENT TO
SHOREWOOD CITY CODE CHAPTER 1004

RELATED TORENTAL HOUSING REGULATIONS

THECITY COUNCIL OFTHECITY OFSHOREWOOD, MINNESOTA, ORDAINS:    

SECTION 1:  AMENDMENT.  That theMunicipal CodeofShorewood, Minnesota, Chapter 1004,  
Section 1004.03 (Licensing ofRental Units), ishereby amended assetforthbelowbyadding the
underlined language anddeleting thestrikethrough language asfollows:  

Subd. 5. Owner oragent toapply.  

b. Required information. Theapplicant shallsupply:  
1) Name, address andtelephone number ofdwelling owner, owning

partners ifapartnership, andcorporate officers ifacorporation;  
2) Name, address andtelephone number ofdesignated resident

agent, ifany;  
3) Name, address andtelephone number ofmanagement

representative;  
4) Name, address andtelephone number ofvendee, ifthedwelling

isbeingsoldthrough acontract fordeed;  
5) Legaladdress ofthedwelling;  
6) Typeofdwelling;  
7) Typeandnumber ofdwelling unitswithin thebuilding;  
8) Description ofprocedure through which tenant inquiries and

complaints aretobeprocessed;  
9) Test results fordomestic water supplied byaprivate wellfroma

labcertified bytheMinnesota Department ofHealth; and
10) Test results (within30days) forthefurnace performed bya

certified mechanical contractor bonded withtheMinnesota Department ofLaborandIndustry.  
11) Chimney report foroperational wood-burning fireplaces



SECTION 2:  AMENDMENT.  That theMunicipal CodeofShorewood, Minnesota, Chapter 1004,  
Section 1004.04 (Minimum Standards) Subd. 2 (General Provisions), ishereby amended asset
forthbelowbyadding theunderlined language anddeleting thestrikethrough language as
follows:  

l. Facilities tofunction. Everysupplied facility, pieceofequipment orutility
required under cityordinances andtheassociated everychimney flueshallbeinstalled and
maintained andshall function effectively inasafe, sound andworking condition.  Wood- 
burning fireplaces mayberendered nonoperational ifblocked orsealed toprevent usetothe
satisfaction oftheCompliance Official.  

SECTION 3. EFFECTIVE DATE.  ThisOrdinance shall takeeffectuponpublication intheCity's
official newspaper.  

thADOPTED BYTHECITY COUNCIL OFTHECITYOFSHOREWOOD, MINNESOTA this10 dayof
April, 2023.  

JENNIFER LABADIE, MAYOR

ATTEST:  

SANDIE THONE, CITYCLERK



CITYOFSHOREWOOD
COUNTY OFHENNEPIN
STATE OFMINNESOTA

RESOLUTION 23-036

ARESOLUTION APPROVING THEPUBLICATION OF
ORDINANCE 598REGARDING CITYCODE ORDINANCE

AMENDMENTS RELATED TOTHERENTAL HOUSING REGULATIONS

WHEREAS, atadulycalled meeting onMarch 27, 2023, theCityCounciloftheCityof
Shorewood adopted Ordinance No. 598entitled “ANORDINANCE APPROVING AN
AMENDMENT TOSHOREWOOD CITY CODE CHAPTER 1004RELATED TORENTAL HOUSING
REGULATIONS”; and
WHEREAS, theCityCouncil adopted alengthy ordinance amending CityCode Chapters 1004.03
Licensing ofRental Units) which contains requirements forlicense applications and1004.04
Minimum Standards) which includes regulations defining theminimum maintenance standards

including thosestandards forfluesandwoodburning fireplaces forrental properties; and
WHEREAS, thepurpose ofthissummary istoinform thepublic oftheintentandeffectofthe
ordinance buttopublish onlyasummary oftheordinance with thefullordinance beingonfilein
theofficeoftheCityClerkduring regular officehoursandavailable onthecity’swebsite.  

NOW THEREFORE, ITISHEREBY RESOLVED BYTHECITYCOUNCIL OFTHECITYOF
SHOREWOOD:  

1. TheCityCouncil findsthattheabove titleandsummary ofOrdinance No. 598clearly
informs thepublicoftheintentandeffectoftheOrdinance.  

2. TheCityClerk isdirected topublish Ordinance No. 598bytitleandsummary, pursuant
toMinnesota Statutes, Section 412.191, Subdivision 4. Suchsummary istobe
substantially thesame astheattached ordinance.  

3. AfullcopyoftheOrdinance isavailable atShorewood CityHallandonthecity’s
website.  

THAdoptedbytheCityCouncilofShorewood, Minnesota this10 dayofApril, 2023.  

Jennifer Labadie, Mayor
Attest:  

Sandie Thone, CityClerk



CityCouncilMeetingItem

Title/Subject:   Therapeutic MassageTherapyLicenseOrdinance600 Item
Repealing andReplacing CityCodeChapter 311 8A

MeetingDate:  April10, 2023
Preparedby:   SandieThone, CityClerk/HumanResources Director
Reviewedby:   JaredShepherd, CityAttorney

MarcNevinski, CityAdministrator
Attachments:  Ordinance 600AnOrdinance Approving Amendments toShorewood

CityCodeChapter311 (MassageLicensing)  
Resolution Approving Summary Publication
CurrentCityCode, Chapter311Therapeutic MassageLicensing

Background:   
August27, 2001theShorewood CityCouncilapproved Ordinance 373-bEstablishing regulations
forTherapeutic MassageLicensing.  Theordinance wascodifiedasChapter311intoShorewood
CityCode.  OnFebruary13, 2012, theCityCouncilapproved Ordinance 490, whichrepealedand
replaced theexistingChapter311initsentiretyandreplaceditwithwhatisstillthecurrent
codetoday.  Theactionin2012provided formorerobustapplication requirements andgeneral
conditionsofthelicense, buttheeducational requirements andtheremainderofthemassage
therapycodehaveremained consistent since2001.    

MassageTherapists andMassageTherapybusinesses arenotsubject toanynational
regulations.  Thisleavesregulationoftheindustrytothestates.  Minnesota isoneoffourstates
MN, WY, VT, KS) nationwide thatdonotregulateorlicensemassage therapy.  Thisleavesfull

regulation andlicensing tothelocallevel.      

In2022, thecityclerk’sofficebeganreceiving anunprecedented numberofmassage therapy
applications toperformmassage therapyatoneoftwolocations inShorewood.  Afteramore
extensive background wasperformed including in-depthchecksontheeducation verificationof
eachoftheapplicants, severalapplications weredenied.  Itwasduringthisperiodoftime, that
severalmore “futureapplicants” wererequestingcitystafftocheckiftheywould “qualifyfora
license” beforesubmitting theactualfullapplication packetandlicensefee.  Theserequests
weredenied.  Afterafullinvestigation, itwasfoundthatoneoftheeducational institutions
certifyingoneofthestudentshaditslicenserevokedandwasunderinvestigation forhuman
trafficking.  Inaddition, manyofthelocations, thetherapists hadreceivedlicenseswerebeing
watchedfor “questionable behavior.”  Itbecameclearthatinordertoprotect theintegrityof
thebusinesscommunity inShorewood, thecitymayneedtoconsideramorerobustMassage
Therapycodetoavoidanyofthesituations playingoutinothernearbycommunities.    

MissionStatement:  TheCityofShorewood iscommitted toproviding residents qualitypublic
services, ahealthy environment, avarietyofattractive amenities, asustainable taxbase, and
sound financial management through effective, efficient, andvisionary leadership.  Page1



Thecityismore thanhappy tosupport thelegitimate health careandhealth maintenance
practice ofmassage therapy, butcouldsee, being thesoleregulator oftheindustry, the
attention paidtotherequirements wouldbeimportant.    

Ordinance 600AnOrdinance Approving Amendments toShorewood CityCodeChapter 311
Massage Licensing) proposes repealing andreplacing existing citycodewithnew, morerobust

code language inconsidering massage therapy businesses andmassage therapist licenses inour
community.  Inthepast fewyears, many citieshaverevised andupdated theirMassage
Therapy licensing andenforcement, duetotheconditions observed within theindustry.  The
mostsignificant changes proposed totheexisting codeareasfollows:  

1. Thedefinitions section hasbeenexpanded andrevised tocurrent daystandards
2. Thepenalties section hasbeenexpanded andupdated torelevant state statute
3. Proofoflocal residency hasbeenadded (MNorWI)  
4. Business Licensing section hasbeenexpanded significantly.  Thissection willhelpto

identify theMassage Therapy business requirements andseparate themfromthe
therapist licenses.  

5. Personal Services Licenses section hasbeenexpanded andinclude updated educational
requirements.    

6. Ineligibility forLicense section hasbeenadded andincludes priorconviction language.  
7. Processing ofLicense Application; Granting orDenialofLicense section hasbeenadded,  

including c) Criteria forIssuance section, which willaidtheCityClerk inconsideration of
granting, denying, renewing, ordeclining torenewalicense.  

8. Transfer ofLicense section hasbeenadded whichstates thelicense isnot transferrable.  
9. Operation ofBusiness; License Conditions section hasbeenadded.    
10. Suspension orRevocation ofLicense section hasbeenadded.    
11. Approval ofPlansandSpecifications forMassage Parlors andSaunas section hasbeen

added.    
12. Construction andMaintenance ofPremises UsedforMassage Business section hasbeen

added.    
13. Guest Registry andInspection Requirements hasbeen added.    
14. Insurance section hasbeenupdated toreflect increased requirements.  
15. Exceptions section hasbeenexpanded

Financial Considerations:  Staff isexpected toperform anauditofcity feesasitrelates tomassge
therapy business andpersonal licenses ifandwhenOrdinance 600isapproved, toensure weare
licensing bothservices andcapturing thecostofstaff timeinissuing thelicenses.    

Action Requested: Staff respectfully recommends thecitycouncil Approve Ordinance 600An
Ordinance Approving Amendments toShorewood CityCode Chapter 311 (Massage Licensing)  
Motion, second andsimple majority voterequired.    

Staff respectfully recommends thecitycouncil Approve theResolution fortheSummary
Publication ofOrdinance 600Amendments toShorewood CityCodeChapter 311
Motion, second and4/5voterequired.    



ORDINANCE 600

CITYOFSHOREWOOD
COUNTYOFHENNEPIN
STATEOFMINNESOTA

ANORDINANCE APPROVING AMENDMENTS TOSHOREWOOD CITYCODE
CHAPTER311 (MASSAGE LICENSING)   

THECITYCOUNCIL OFTHECITYOFSHOREWOOD, MINNESOTA, DOESORDAIN:    

SECTION1:  AMENDMENT. ThattheMunicipal CodeofShorewood, Minnesota, Chapter311, ishereby

repealedandreplaced initsentiretywiththefollowing:  

311.01 DEFINITIONS.  

Thefollowing words, terms, andphrases, whenusedinthisarticle, shallhavethemeanings ascribedto
theminthissection, exceptwherethecontextclearly indicatesadifferentmeaning:  

Adequateandapprovedmeanacceptable tothecountyhealthinspector following theirdetermination
astoconformance withpublichealthpracticesandstandards.  

Healthcarefacilityorprovidermeansanypersonproviding medical, surgical, dental, chiropractic or
osteopathic services, orphysical therapyservicespursuant toaprescription therefor, wherein
practitioners arelicensedbythestate, suchas, butnotlimitedto, ahospital, sanitarium, resthome,  
nursinghome, boardinghome, orotherinstitution forthehospitalization orcareofhumanbeingsduly
licensedundertheprovisionsofMinn. Stats. §§ 144.50144.69.  

ameanstheindividual responsible foradministering thedailyoperationsoftheMassage
business, includingsupervision ofstaffandthepremises.  

ameansthemethodoftreatingthesuperficial partsofthehumanbodyofanotherbyrubbing,  
pressing, stroking, kneading, tapping, pounding, vibrating, orstimulating withthehandsorany
instrument forhireorforconsideration withtheintentionofpositively affecting thehealthandwell- 
beingoftheclient. Theterm "massage" shallnotincludesuchactivitieswhenperformedexclusively on
aperson'shandand/orfootinconjunctionwithamanicureorpedicure.  

a meanstheofferingofmassageservicestothegeneralpublic, regardless ofwhether
theofferislimitedonlytoselectinviteesororganizational members.  

a tmeansapersonwhopracticesoradministersamassage.  

hmeanstoown, manageorconduct.  

meanstobefreefrompathogenic micro-organisms.  

4102023



meansphysicalpresenceaswellastelephone referralsituations, suchasa "phone-a- 
message" typeoperation, inwhichthebusinesspremises, although notactually locatedwithinthecity,  
servesasapointofassignment ofemployees whorespond torequests forservices fromwithinthecity.  

311.02 PENALTIES.  

a) Everypersonwhocommitsorattemptstocommit, conspires tocommitoraidsorabets
inthecommission ofanyactconstituting aviolationofthisarticleoranyrule
promulgated thereunder, whether individually orinconnection withoneormoreother
personsorasprincipal, agent, oraccessory, shallbeguiltyofamisdemeanor and, upon
conviction, shallbepunished inaccordancewith section104.01. Everypersonwho
falsely, fraudulently, forciblyorwillfully induces, causes, coerces, permitsordirects
anothertoviolateanyoftheprovisionsofthisarticleoranyrulepromulgated
thereunder islikewiseguiltyofamisdemeanor.  

b) Thecitymayseektoenforce thischapterthroughcriminalprosecution and/orcivilrelief.  
Nothinginthisarticleshallprohibit thecityfromseekingmisdemeanor prosecution,  
administrative penalties, orboth, anddoesnotaffectthecity'srighttosuspendorrevoke
thelicenseofalicenseeasthecitycouncildeemsappropriate. Noadministrative penalty
orlicensesuspension orrevocation maytakeeffectuntilthelicenseeorother individual
hasreceivednotice, servedpersonallybymail, oftheallegedviolationandofthe
opportunity forahearing.  

311.03 LICENSE REQUIRED.  

Exceptasmayotherwise beprovided inthisarticleandwiththeexceptionofhealthcare
facilitiesorproviders, itshallbeunlawful foranypersontooperateamassagebusinessortopersonally
performmassage servicesortoholdone'sselfoutasbeingamassage therapistwithinthecityunless
suchbusinessorindividual performing massageservices iscurrently licensedunderthisarticle.  
Employees ofamassagebusinessmustbeseparately licensedtoperformpersonalmassage services
underthisarticleiftheyperformsuchservices.  

311.04 PROOFOFLOCALRESIDENCY REQUIRED.  

Anyapplicant forabusiness licenseorpersonalservice licenseshallshowproofofMinnesota
orWisconsin residency. Inthecaseofabusiness license, themanager mustalsoresidewithin
MinnesotaorWisconsin.  

311.05 FILINGANDCONTENTS OFLICENSE APPLICATION.  

a) Everyapplication foralicenseunderthisarticleshallbefiledwiththeCityClerk.  Each
application shallbemadeonaformsuppliedbythecityandshallcontain thefollowing
information:  

4102023



1) Business licenses.  
a. Whether theapplicant isanaturalperson, acorporation, apartnership,  

orotherformoforganization.  
b. Iftheapplicant isanaturalperson:  

1. Thetruename, place, anddateofbirth, address, andphone
numberoftheapplicant.  

2. Whether theapplicanthaseverusedorhasbeenknownbya
nameotherthantheirtruename, and, ifso, whatwassuch
nameandinformation concerning datesandplaceswhereused.  

3. Thenameofthebusinessifitistobeconducted undera
designation, nameorstyleotherthanthefullindividual name
oftheapplicant; insuchcase, acertifiedcopyofthecertificate
asrequiredbyMinn. Stats. Ch. 333shallbeattachedtothe
application.  

4. AMinnesota taxidentification numberaccompanied bythe
corresponding certificate oforganization issuedbythe
Minnesota SecretaryofState'sOffice.  

5. Thestreetaddressatwhichtheapplicant haslivedduringthe
preceding fiveyears.  

6. Thetype, nameandlocationofeverybusinessoroccupation
theapplicanthasbeenengagedinduringthepreceding five
years.  

7. Thenamesandaddressesoftheapplicant'semployers and
partners, ifany, forthepreceding fiveyears.  

8. Whether theapplicanthaseverbeenconvictedofanyfelonyor
othercrimeorviolationofanyordinance otherthantraffic
ordinances. Ifso, theapplicantshallfurnish information asto
thetime, placeandoffenseforwhichconvictions werehad.  

9. Thephysicaldescription oftheapplicant (i.e., height, eyecolor,  
haircolor, approximate weight).  

10. Agovernment issuedphotoIDcard. Non-U.S. citizensmust
providedocumentation indicating authorization toworkinthe
U.S. Identification documents shallbecopiedandmadepartof
theapplication.  

11. Theapplicant'strainingorexperience inperforming massage
services.  

12. Thenameofthemanagerorproprietor orotheragentincharge
ofthebusinesstobelicensed.  

13. Theapplicantmustallowthecitytophotograph theapplicant.  
Thephotograph willbeaffixedtotheissuedlicense.  

c. Iftheapplicant isapartnership:  
1. Thenames, addressesandinterestofallpartnersandall

information concerning eachpartnerasisrequiredofan
individual applicant insubsection (a)(1)bofthissection. A
separateapplication formshallbesubmitted foreachbusiness
partner.  

2. Thenameofthemanager.  
3. Atruecopyofthepartnership agreement, whichshallbe

4102023



submittedwiththeapplication. Ifthepartnership isrequiredto
fileacertificate astoatradenameundertheprovisionsof
Minn. Stats. Ch. 333, acertifiedcopyofsuchcertificate shall
alsobeattached.  

d. Iftheapplicant isacorporation orotherorganization:  
1. Thenameand, ifincorporated, thestateofincorporation.  
2. Atruecopyofthecertificateofincorporation, articlesof

incorporation orassociation agreement, andbylaws, whichshall
beattachedtotheapplication. Ifaforeigncorporation, a
certificateofauthority, asdescribed inMinn. Stats. Ch. 303, shall
alsobeattached.  

3. Thenameofthemanagerofthebusiness tobelicensedandall
information concerning suchpersonsasisrequired insubsection
a)(1)bofthissection. Theindividualdesignated bythe

corporation, partnership orotherorganization asmanagershall
remainresponsible fortheconductofthedailyoperationsofthe
businessuntilanothersuitablepersonhasbeendesignated in
writingbythelicensee. Thelicenseeshallpromptlynotifythecity
inwritingofanychange inmanager, indicating thename, address
andtelephone numberofthenewmanagerandtheeffective
dateofthechange. Thelicenseeisnotrelievedofanyobligations
underthischapterbydesignation ofamanager.  

4. Alistofallpersonswhoareofficersordirectorsofthe
corporation ororganization orwhocontrolorownaninterest in
excessoffivepercentinsuchcorporation ororganization, andall
information concerning suchpersonsasisrequired insubsection
a)(1)(b) ofthissection. Aseparate application formshallbe

submitted foreachbusinesspartner.  
e. Identifyanypriororcurrentprofessional, personal, orbusiness licenseor

licenseapplication fromajurisdiction otherthanthecity. Foreachlicense
orapplication supply thedateofapplication, thenatureofthelicense,  
whether theapplication wasgrantedordenied, currentstatusofthe
licenseorapplication, specifyanyadverseaction (suchasrevocation,  
suspension, cancellation, orconditional provisionsofpracticeoruseofa
professional, personal, orbusiness license, orcriminal charges) taken
against thelicense, licensee, anyemployee, agent, contractor, orother
personassociated withanylicenseorlicenseapplication fromanother
jurisdiction.  

f. Thenamesofthoseindividuals tobelicensedandworkingforthe
applicant. Atleastonelicensedmassage therapist, oranapplicant fora
personalservice licensecontemporaneously filedwiththebusiness
licenseapplication, mustbeemployedorassociated withthebusiness
priortotheissuanceofabusiness license.  

g. Thenames, residences, andbusinessaddresses ofthreeresidentsofthe
StateofMinnesota, ofgoodmoralcharacter, notrelatedtothe
applicantorfinancially interested inthepremisesorbusiness, which
mayprovidereferenceastotheapplicant'sand/ormanager's
character.  

4102023



h. Theaddressandlegaldescription ofthebusinesspremises.  
i. Proofacceptable tothecitythattheapplicanthascurrent insurance

coverageasprovided insection311.18.     
j. Acopyofthebusinesses sexualharassment andsexualassaultpolicy,  

whichshallincludestandardsfortrainingemployees onsexual
harassment andsexualassaultandthereportingandinvestigation of
complaints.  

k. Suchotherinformation ascitystafforcitycouncilmayrequire,  
includinganyadditional information relatedtotheforegoing
mandatoryapplication contents.  

2) Personal service licenses.  
a. Allinformation requiredaboveforbusiness licensesundersubsections

a)(1)b.1, b.2, (a)(1)b.510, (a)(1)b.12, (a)(1)e, and (a)(1)gi.  
b. Proofacceptable tothecitythattheapplicant:  

1. Islegallyauthorized toworkintheU.S. Non-U.S. citizensmust
providedocumenting indicating authorization toworkinthe
U.S.  

2. Possesses currentpersonalprofessional liability insurance
coverageorisanadditional insuredand/orissubjecttoan
insurance policyheldbyabusiness licensed undersection
311.05, withcoverageasrequiredbyinCityCode section
311.18.  

3. Isaffiliatedwith, employedby, orownsamassagebusiness
licensedbythecityorisexemptfromsuchrequirement.  

c. Certificates shallbeissuedonlytopersonswhohavereceivedandcan
furnishproofofreceivingaqualifying amountofeducation. These
minimumrequirements areanyofthefollowing:  
1. Holdanassociate'sdegreeorgreater leveldegree inafieldof

nursingorphysical therapyfromastate-accredited, post- 
secondary educational institution, andholdacurrent license, in
goodstanding, fromtheStateofMinnesota topracticenursing
orphysical therapy;  

2. Hascompleted 500hoursofcertified therapeutic massage
trainingfromamember schooloftheNationalCertification
BoardforMassageTherapeutic MassageandBodywork
NCBTMB) orotherorganization oftherapeutic massage

professionals whichhasasimilarwrittenandenforceable code
ofethicsasapprovedbytheCityClerk.  

3. Successfully passtheNationalExamination forTherapeutic
Massage withintheyearpriortoapplication asofferedbythe
U.S. NationalOrganization BoardforTherapeutic Massageand
Bodywork.  

4. Havebeenpreviously licensedbythecityandprovide
documentation thatshowsanongoingefforttomaintainor
improvetheirmassage therapyskills.  

d. Thelocationwheretheapplicantwillperformmassageservices, which
locationmustconformwithsections 311.4and311.5unlessotherwise
provided inthisarticle.  

4102023



b) Theapplicantandlicenseeshallhaveacontinuing dutytoimmediately disclosetothe
cityanychangeintheinformation supplied intheapplication.  

311.06 EXECUTION OFLICENSE APPLICATION.  

Allapplications foralicenseunderthisarticle, whetherforbusinessorpersonal service, shall
besignedandswornto. Iftheapplication isthatofanaturalperson, itshallbesignedandsworntoby
suchperson; ifbyacorporation, byanofficerthereof; ifbyapartnership, byoneofthepartners; and
ifbyanunincorporated association, bythemanagerormanaging officerthereof.  

311.07 FEES.  

Eachapplication foralicenseunderthisarticleshallbeaccompanied bypayment infulloftherequired
license fee. Uponrejectionofanyapplication foralicense, thecityshallrefundtheamountpaid. No
otherrefundsshallbemade.  

311.08 INELIGIBILITY FORLICENSE.  

Nolicenseshallbeissuedunderthisarticletothefollowing:  

1) Anindividual lessthan18yearsofage.  

2) Anindividualwhohasbeenconvicted ofprostitution, sextrafficking, criminal sexual
conduct, oranyothercrimeorviolationinvolving moralturpitude.  

3) Anyotherpersonwhoseapplication listsoneormoreindividuals whohavebeen
convictedofprostitution, sextrafficking, criminalsexualconductoranyothercrimeor
violationinvolving moralturpitude.  

4) Anypremisescurrently licensedinaccordance witharticleXIIIofthischapteror
currently licensedtosellalcoholic beverages inaccordance withchapter401.  

311.09 PROCESSING OFLICENSE APPLICATION; GRANTING ORDENIALOFLICENSE.  

a) Business licenses. Applications forbusiness licensesunderthisarticleshallbeprocessed
asfollows:  
1) Investigation andreport. Complete applications shallbereferredtothechief

ofpoliceforinvestigationandtosuchothercitydepartments astheCityClerk
shalldeemnecessary forverification andinvestigation ofthefactssetforthin
theapplication. Within15businessdaysofsuchreferral, thechiefofpoliceand
otherdepartments shallmakeawrittenrecommendation totheCityClerkasto
issuanceornon-issuanceofthelicense. TheCityClerkmayorderandconduct
suchadditional investigation ashedeemsnecessary.  

4102023



2) Determination byCityClerk. TheCityClerk shallmakethedetermination
whether toapproveordenythelicense. Anydenialshallbecommunicated to
theapplicant inwriting, specifying thereasonsfordenial.  

b) Personalservice licenses. Applications forpersonal service licensesshallbeprocessed
asfollows:  
1) Investigation. Complete applications shallbereferredtothechiefofpolicefor

investigation andtosuchotherdepartments astheCityClerk shalldeem
necessary forverification andinvestigation ofthefactssetforthinthe
application. Within15businessdaysofsuchreferral, thechiefofpoliceand
otherdepartments shallmakeawrittenrecommendation totheCityClerk
regarding issuanceofthelicense. TheCityClerkmayconductorauthorizesuch
additional investigation ashereasonably deemsnecessary.  

2) Determination byCityClerk. Uponreceiptofthewrittenreportand
recommendation bythechiefofpoliceandwithin15business daysthereafter,  
theCityClerkshallmakethedetermination whethertoapproveordenythe
license. Anydenialshallbecommunicated totheapplicant inwritingspecifying
thereasonsfordenial. Theapplicantmayappealthisdenialinaccordance with
theprocedure specified insection308.10.  

3) Renewal. Complete applications forrenewaloflicensesshallbesubmitted tothe
CityClerkatleast30dayspriortotheexpirationofthelicense. TheCityClerk's
determination regarding approvalordenialofthelicenserenewalshallbe
communicated totheapplicant inwriting, specifying thereasonsifthelicense is
denied. Theapplicant mayappeal thedenialinaccordance withtheprocedure
specified insection308.10.  

c) Criteriaforissuance. TheCityClerkshallhavethediscretion toconsider thefollowing
ingranting, denying, renewing, ordeclining torenewalicense:  
1) Thecharacterandsuitabilityoftheareainwhichthelicensedpremises istobe

located.  
2) Theproximityofthesiteforthemassagebusiness tochurches, schools,  

playgrounds, parksorothercommunity facilities thatmaybeadverselyaffected.  
3) Numbersandproximityofexistingmassagebusinessessoasnottocause

excessive concentration inanarea.  
4) Trafficcongestion andparkingproblems.  
5) Falsestatements orrepresentations, fraud, ordeception inthelicense

application.  
6) Historyofviolations oflawsorordinances thatapplytohealth, safety, welfareor

moralturpitude.  
7) Evidenceofreputationorcharacterofapplicant, deemed bytheCityClerkto

supportareasonable conclusion thatapplicant'soperationofabusinessor
performance ofalicenseewillnotbeconsistent withthepublichealth, safety,  
andwelfare, ortherequirement ofthisCode.  

8) Convictions ofcrimesoroffenses involvingsexualmisconduct, prostitution, sex
trafficking, orfraud.  

9) Inability toprovideauthorization toworkintheU.S.  
10) Policereportand/orlawenforcement investigation deemedbytheCityClerkto

containacredibleallegationofprostitution orcriminalsexualmisconduct.  
11) If, forabusiness license, theapplicant orlicenseehasprovidedacopyofitssexual

harassment andsexualabuse/assaultpolicy, whichisdeemedbytheCityClerk,  

4102023



tobefundamentally inadequate topreventandprotectagainstsexualassaultand
abuse.  

12) Revocation ordenialofsimilar licenseswithinthelastfiveyears.  
13) AnyothermatterdeemedbytheCityClerktoberelevant toprotectionofthe

public'shealth, safetyandwelfare.  
d) Conditions.  

1) TheCityClerk, intheirsolediscretion, mayimposeappropriate additional
terms, conditions andstipulations uponthebusiness licenseeorpersonal
service licenseholderbeforegrantingalicenseapplication orrenewinga
license. Anapplicant hastheabilitytoappealanyterms, conditions, or
stipulations onthegrantoflicenseinaccordance withsection308.10.  

2) Thecitycouncil, initssolediscretion, mayimposeappropriate additional terms,  
conditions, andstipulations uponthelicenseeorpersonal service license
holder, ifreinstatingalicenseafterrevocationorsuspension, consistent with
311.12

311.10 TERMOFLICENSE.  

a) Alllicensesissuedpursuant tothisarticleshallbevalidforoneyearorpartthereofand
shallexpireonDecember31. Complete renewalapplications shallbefiledwiththeCity
ClerkbyNovember 30. IfalicenseedoesnotapplyforrenewalbyNovember 30 (i.e., a
monthbeforethelicense'sexpiration), toallowthecitytheopportunity toprocessthe
application priortotheircurrent license'sexpiration, thelicenseemustapplyforand
provideallinformation requiredofanewlicenseapplication, including butnotlimitedto,  
acriminalbackground check.  

b) Whenalicenseemakesapplication forrenewalofacurrent licenseandpaystherequired
feetotheissuingauthorityonorbefore thetermination date, thelicenseeisauthorized
tooperateuntilsuchtimeasthelicenseiseitherrenewedordenied.  

311.11 TRANSFER OFLICENSE.  

Eachpersonalservice licenseissuedunderthisarticleshallbeissuedtotheapplicantonlyand
shallnotbetransferable toanotherholder. Nobusiness licenseeshallloan, sell, give, orassignalicense
toanotherpersonorlocation.  

311.12 OPERATION OFBUSINESS; LICENSE CONDITIONS.  

a) Nomassagebusinessshallemployoruseanypersonasamassage therapistunlesssuch
personislicensedforperforming personalservicesbythecity.  

b) Exceptwithrespecttohealthcarefacilitiesorproviders, nocustomersorpatronsshall
beallowedtoenterorremainuponthelicensedpremises, norshallanymassageor
massagebusinessbeofferedorconducted, after10:00p.m. andbefore8:00a.m. daily.  

4102023



Theactualhourswhenalicenseechoosestoconductbusinessmustbeonfilewiththe
policedepartment andcityandbeinaccordance withthebusinesshoursdesignated on
theirlicenseapplication. Thesedesignated hoursmustbeprominently displayedonthe
interiorandexteriorofthelicensedpremises. Nopersonmayengageinthepracticeof
anyserviceregulatedbythischapteroutsideofthosedesignated hours. Clientelemay
beonthelicensedpremises fornomorethan15minutesbeforeorafterthedesignated
hours.  

c) Anypersonactingasamassage therapist inanymassagebusinessshallhavetheir
licenseoratruecopythereofdisplayed inaprominentplaceonthelicensedpremises.  

d) Eachpersonal servicelicenseeshallperformmassageserviceonlyinanestablishment
licensedpursuant tothisarticleoranestablishment exempted fromalicenseunderthis
article.  

e) Nolicenseeshalldiscriminate ongroundsofrace, creed, color, sex, nationalorigin, or
ancestryinperforming servicesofferedbythelicensee.  

f) Thepersonwhoisreceiving themassageshallatalltimeshavetheiranusandgenitals
coveredwithanontransparent covering.  

g) Themassage therapistshallwashtheirhandsandarmswithwaterandsoap, anti- 
bacterial scrubs, alcohol, orotherdisinfectants priortoandfollowingeachmassage
serviceperformed.  

h) Anymassage therapistperforming anymassages shallatalltimeshavetheiranus,  
buttocks, breastsandgenitals coveredwithanontransparent material.  

i) Everyemployeeofanylicenseeshallatalltimesbecoveredasprovided insubsection
h) ofthissection.  

j) Nopersonalservice licenseeshallsolicitbusinessinanypublicplaceorinanylicensed
liquorestablishment withinthecity. Ifabusiness licenseorpersonalservice licenseis
undersuspension orrevocation, thelicenseeorformerlicensee, asthecasemaybe,  
shallnotsolicitbusinessorofferoragreetoperformmassageservices, norshallany
business licenseeaffectedbyasuspension orrevocationofsuchlicenseallow,  
encourage, ordirectanyemployeetosolicitbusinessorofferoragreetoperform
massageserviceswithinthecity.  

k) Whereareasonable basisisfoundbytheCityClerk toimposeotherreasonable
restrictions uponalicense, takingintoconsideration oneormoreofthefactsor
circumstances setforthinsection311.12, theCityClerkmayuponissuanceorrenewal
ofalicenseimposesuchadditional reasonable conditions andrestrictions onthe
mannerandcircumstances underwhichthelicensedactivityshallbeconducted to
preservethepublicpeaceandprotectandpromote thepublic'shealth, safety, welfare,  
goodorderandsecurity.  

l) Thebusiness licenseeisresponsible fortheconductofthemselves, theirbusiness, and
theiremployees.  

m) Thelicenseeshallengageinpracticesdesignedtoensurecleanliness andhealthand
whicharedesignedtoresistanythingdetrimental tothepublic'shealth, safetyor
welfare.  

n) Noperson, whetherasalicenseeoremployeeoragentthereoforotherwise, shall
engageoroffertoengageinanysexualactivityorengageoroffertoengageinany
activityprohibitedbystatute, ordinance, regulationorrule, onthelicensedpremisesor
inconnection withamassageormassagebusiness.  

o) Thelicenseeshallreportanycomplaints ofsexualmisconduct orsexualassaultmade
byitspatronsagainst itsemployees. Thelicenseeshalltakesuchactionasrequiredby

4102023



itssexualharassment and/orsexualassaultpoliciesonfilewiththecity. Inreporting to
thecity, thelicenseeshallprotect theidentityofthecomplainant ifthecomplainant is
thevictimofsexualassaultorabuse.  

p) Nolicenseeshallknowingly permitonthelicensedpremisesorinanyroomofthe
licensed premises, orinanyadjoiningbuildingdirectlyorindirectlyunderhisorher
controlanyviolationofcityordinances orstateorfederal law.  

q) Inordertoinhibit illicitorillegalactivity, including prostitution andhumantrafficking,  
nolicenseeshalladvertise massageservices throughanymediathatisclassified for
adultsonlyortargeted towardsexually-oriented businesses, oruseofanyadvertising
thatreferstothemassageservicesasappealing toorsatisfyinganeroticorprurient
interest, lust, sexualorpassionate desire.  

311.13SUSPENSION ORREVOCATION OFLICENSE.  

Thecitycouncilmaysuspendorrevokealicenseissuedunderthisarticle. Anysuspension or
revocation ofalicenseshallbeaccomplished inaccordance withtheprocedure specified insections
308.09and308.10. Inaddition, thecouncilmay, withoutanynotice, suspendanylicensependinga
hearingonrevocation foraperiodnotexceeding30days, whichsuspension shallbecommunicated to
thelicenseepersonallyorbyleavingthenotification atthelicensedpremiseswiththepersonincharge
thereof. Anyoneofthefollowingshallbegroundsforsuspensionorrevocationofalicense:  

1) Failureofthelicensedpremisesorpersonal licenseetocomplywithanyofthe
ordinancesofthecity, rulespromulgated thereunder, orstatutesofstate. AddedSpace

2) Controlorpossession bytheowner, manager, lessee, oranyemployeeofthemassage
businessofanyalcoholicbeveragesornarcoticdrugsorcontrolled substances onthe
premises, possessionofwhichisillegalasdefinedbystatestatutesorcityordinances.  

3) Convictionoftheowner, manager, lessee, oranyemployeeofthemassagebusinessof
aviolationofanyordinanceorstatestatuteoranyrulepromulgated undereither,  
arisingonthepremisestowhichthelicensewasgrantedunderthisarticle.  

4) Convictionoftheowner, manager, lesseeoranyemployeeofthemassagebusinessof
prostitution oranyothercrimeorviolation involvingmoralturpitude, sextrafficking, or
sexualmisconduct onthelicensedpremises.  

5) Policereportand/orlawenforcement investigation deemedbytheCityClerktocontain
acredibleallegationofprostitution, sextrafficking, orcriminal sexualmisconduct.  

6) Reportofinternal investigation bybusiness licenseewhereinapersonal licenseeis
suspended orterminated forcredibleallegationsofprostitutionorcriminal sexual
conduct.  

7) Failureofbusiness licenseetoadopt, implement, oreffectively utilizeasexual
harassment orsexualabuse/assaultpolicy.  

8) Failuretopromptlynotifythedirectorofcommunity development ofanychangeinthe
information orfactsrequiredtobesubmitted inconnection withanapplication fora
license.  

4102023



9) Failureofthepremises tocomplywiththehealth, safetyandbuilding regulations ofthe
cityandstate.  

10) Presenceofthemassagebusinessbeingfoundtobedetrimental tothehealth, safety
orwelfareofthecitizensofthecity.  

11) Evidenceofamaterialvariance, withoutpriorapprovaloftheCityClerk, intheactual
plananddesignofthepremisesfromtheplansubmitted pursuant to311.14orfrom
theoriginaldesignofthepremiseswheninitially licensed.  

12) Ifalicenseisrevokedpursuant tothissection, thelicenseecannotapplyforanew
licenseforaperiodofoneyearafterrevocation.  

311.14APPROVAL OFPLANSANDSPECIFICATIONS FORMASSAGE PARLORS ANDSAUNAS.  

Allpersonswhohereafter construct, extensively remodelorconvertbuildingsorfacilities for
useasamassagebusinessshallconformandcomply intheirconstruction, erectionoralterationwith
therequirements ofthisarticle. Plansandspecifications forsuchlayout, arrangement andplumbing
andconstruction materialsofthesaunaandmassageareas, andlocation, sizeandtypeofequipment
andfacilities, shallbefiledbytheowner inthebuilding department. Noconstruction, alteration, or
remodeling willoccurwithout issuanceofabuildingpermit.  

311.15CONSTRUCTION ANDMAINTENANCE OFPREMISES USEDFORMASSAGE BUSINESS.  

a) Allmassagerooms, lockerrooms, restrooms andbathrooms
usedinconnection withamassagebusinessshallbeconstructed ofsmoothandeasily
cleanable materialswhichareresistanttomoisture, bacteria, moldorfungusgrowth.  
Thefloor-to-wallandwall-to-walljointsshallbeconstructed toprovideasanitary cove
withaminimumradiusofoneinch.  

b) wƒ Restroomsshallbeprovidedforeach sex. Eachrestroomshallbe
providedwithventilationasrequired pursuanttothebuilding code, ahandwashing
sinkequippedwithhotandcoldrunningwaterunder pressure, sanitary towelsanda
soap dispenser. Wasteshallberemovedfromeachrestroomatleast

daily.  c) a Floors, wallsandequipmentinmassage
rooms,  restroomsandbathrooms usedinconnectionwiththemassage businessmustbe
keptinastateofgoodrepairandsanitaryatall times. Linensandothermaterialsshall
bestoredatleastsixinchesoffthe floor. Sanitary towels, washcloths, cleaningagents
andtoilettissuemustbemadeavailableforeach

customer.  d) t Alicensed therapeutic massageenterprise
shall providesingle-service disposalpaperorcleanlinenstocover the table, chair, furniture
orareaonwhichthepatronreceives themassage; orin thealternative, if thetable, 
chairorfurnitureonwhichthepatronreceives themassageismadeofmaterial
impervious tomoisture, suchtable, chairorfurnitureshallbeproperlysanitizedafter

each



e) a Doorsonmassageroomsshallnotbelockedorcapableof
being locked. No locks, latchesorotherdevices intendedtosecureadoorsoastoprevent
itsbeingopenedbyanypersonfromeithersideofthedoorwithorwithoutakeymay
bepresentonanydoorsonmassage rooms. Allmassageroomsshallbeclearly
identifiedby signs. Massageroomsmustbeequippedwithmechanicalairventilationor
anexhaust fan. Ahotandcoldwaterhandwashingsinkwithsoapandhanddrying
bymechanicalordisposable towelisrequiredinthetherapeutic massage area. Useof
apublicbathroomorjanitor'ssinkisnot allowed. Onesinkmayservemultiple
massage therapy roomsinthesametherapeutic massage

area.  f) \[Thebusiness licenseandpersonal licenseofallmassage
therapists employedbythebusinessmustbedisplayedatalltimesinanopenand
conspicuous areaofthepremiseswhichpatronscanreadily

view.  311.16GUEST REGISTRYANDINSPECTION

REQUIREMENTS.  a) Thebusiness licenseeisrequiredtoretainaguest/customer registryatall times. 
Theguestregistryshall includetheguest'snameand address, theirarrivaland
departuredateand times, theamount collectedandthemethodof payment. Ifaguestpays
with cash, theymustpresentphotographic identification, whichthebusinessmustcopy
andrecordthenumberandexpirationdateofthe document. Failureofthe
business licenseetomaintainanup-to-dateguest/customer registrymayresultin
suspensionorrevocation undersection311.13. Upondemandbyanypolice officerorthe
City Clerkortheir designee, theguest/customer registrymustbemadeavailable
for inspection. Ifthebusiness licenseedoesnotvoluntarily producetheguest/
customer registry, thebusiness licenseeisrequiredtosecureanywritten registryor
electronic registration systeminthepresenceofthepolice officer, ortheCity Clerkor
their designee, inthemanner directedbythepolice officer, ortheCity Clerkor
their designee. Thebusiness licenseemustensure thatnooneisabletotamperwith
therecordsuntilsuchtimeasa subpoena, warrant, orcourtorderhasbeenissued
or denied. Asubsequent refusaltocomplywithanauthorized subpoena, warrant, 
orcourtordershall constituteaviolationofthis

section.  b) Duringanyhoursinwhichanypersonispresentonthelicensed premises, all
massage businesses shallbeopentoinspectionbycountyhealthandcitybuildingand
license inspectors, police officers, andtheCity Clerkortheir designee. Failuretoallow
anunimpeded inspection shallbeaviolationofthis article. Ifthebusiness licenseeor
themanagerorproprietorofthelicensed premisesdoesnotvoluntarily permit
aninspectionofthe premises, thebusiness licenseeorthemanagerorproprietorof
thelicensed premisesisrequiredtosecurethepremisesinthepresenceofthe
police officer, ortheCityClerkortheir designee, inthemanner directedbythepolice
officer,  ortheCityClerkortheir designee. Thebusiness licenseemustensurethatnoone
isabletotamperwiththerecordsoritemsonthepremisesuntilsuchtimeas
a subpoena, warrant, orcourtorderhasbeenissuedor denied. Asubsequent refusal
tocomplywithanauthorized subpoena, warrant, orcourtordershall constitute
aseparate violationofthis

section.  



c) Upondemandbyanypoliceofficer, anypersonengagedinproviding services inany
licensedpremisesshallprovidetheirtruelegalnameandcorrectaddress. Thebusiness
licenseeisindependently responsible forimmediately providing thetruelegalname
andcorrectaddressofanypersonengaging inmassageservicesonthelicensed
premises.  

311.18INSURANCE

a) Priortotheissuanceofalicenseunderthischapter, theapplicantshallsubmitprooftothe
Cityintheformofinsurance policiesorcertificatesofinsuranceacceptable totheCity, and
issuedbyinsurance companies authorized todobusinessinthestateforthefollowingpolices:  

1) Professional liability inthepracticeofmassageforaminimumlimitof $1,000,000.00.  
2) General liabilityforbodilyinjuryandproperty damageliabilitywithaminimum combined

singlelimitasfollows:  
a. GeneralAggregate  $ 2,000,000.00
b. EachOccurrence $ 1,000,000.00

3)   

b) Shouldanyofthepoliciesbecanceledornotrenewedbeforetheexpiration datethereof, the

betendaysfornonpaymentofpremium.  

c)  
KeyGuideofA-  

311.19 EXCEPTIONS.  

a) Nobusiness licenseshallberequiredforanypremiseswheremassageisofferedasan
accessory useifitmeetsthefollowingcriteriaasevidencedbyaffidavitsandother
documents submitted toandreasonably acceptable tothecity:  

1) Theprincipal activityofthebusinessshallnotbemassage.  

2) Nomorethan25percentoftheestablishment'sannualgrossrevenueshallbe
derivedfrommassage asshownbyfinancial statementscertifiedasbeingtrue
andcorrectbyanindependent certifiedpublicaccountant.  

a) Suchstatements shallbefiledeachyearwiththeCityClerk bythe
personwhooperates thebusinessestablishment.  

b) Suchfilingshallbemadewithin30daysoftheendofthe
establishment'sfiscalyearandshallbeforthefiscalyearjust
completed.  

4102023



c) TheCityClerkmayrequireadditionalormorefrequent financial filings
whendeemedbyhimtobenecessary todetermine compliance with
thissection.  

3) Allpersonsperforming massagemustpossessavalidpersonalservices license
issuedbythecity.  

4) Theroomswheremassage isperformed shallnothaveanexclusive entrance
fromorexittotheexteriorofthebuildinginwhichtheprincipal business is
locatedortoapublicconcourseorpubliclobby. Notwithstanding this
restriction, massagemaybeperformedbyalicensed individualattheresidence
orbusinessofthepersonreceiving themassage, butmaynotbeperformedor
offeredatanypremises requiringalicensepursuant tochapter309orchapter
401.  

5) Allfeesorotherconsideration derivedfromperforming massageshallbe
receivedbyandbeaccounted forbytheproprietoroftheprincipalbusiness.  

6) Allindividuals performing massage inconnection withthebusinessshallbe
employeesoftheprincipalbusinessorshallbeindependent contractors oragents
whoperformmassagepursuant toawrittenagreement withtheownerofthe
principalbusiness.  

b) Nobusiness licenseshallberequiredforanindividualwhodoesnotmaintainabusiness
premiseswithinthecityandwhoperforms massage solelyattheresidenceorbusiness
ofthepersonreceiving themassage. Suchindividuals, however, shallpossessavalid
personalservices license, shallnotemployanyindividuals inconnection withthe
practiceofmassage, andshallnotofferorperformmassageatanypremises requiring
alicensepursuant tochapter309orchapter401.  

c) AllotherprovisionsofthisarticleandthisCodeshallapplyexceptthosewhichbytheir
naturecannotreasonably beappliedtothepersonsandpremises exempted froma
business license.  

311.19RESERVED.  

SECTION2. EFFECTIVE DATE. ThisOrdinance shalltakeeffectuponitspassageandpublication intheCity's
officialnewspaper.  

PassedandadoptedbytheCityCounciloftheCityofShorewood this10thdayofApril, 2023.  

JenniferLabadie, Mayor

ATTEST:  

SandieThone, CityClerk

4102023



CITYOFSHOREWOOD
COUNTY OFHENNEPIN
STATE OFMINNESOTA

RESOLUTION 23-037

ARESOLUTION APPROVING THESUMMARY PUBLICATION FORORDINANCE 600
AMENDMENTS TOSHOREWOOD CITYCODE, CHAPTER 311 (MASSAGE LICENSING)  

WHEREAS, atadulycalled meeting onApril 10, 2023, theCityCouncil oftheCityofShorewood
adopted Ordinance No. 600entitled “ANORDINANCE APROVING AMENDMENTS TO
SHOREWOOD CITYCODE CHAPTER 311 (MASSAGE LICENSING) repealing andreplacing itinits
entirety; and

WHEREAS, Ordinance No. 600establishes therequirements forengaging inthebusiness of
massage within theCityofShorewood, including licensing andperformance standards; and
WHEREAS, Ordinance No. 600islengthy; and
WHEREAS, asauthorized byMinnesota Statutes, Section 412.191, subd. 4, theCityCouncil has
determined thatpublication ofthetitleandsummary oftheordinance willclearly inform the
publicoftheintentandeffectoftheordinance.  

NOW THEREFORE, ITISHEREBY RESOLVED BYTHECITYCOUNCIL OFTHECITYOF
SHOREWOOD:  

1. TheCityCouncil finds thattheabovetitleandsummary ofOrdinance No. 600
clearly informs thepublicoftheintentandeffectoftheOrdinance.  

2. TheCityClerk isdirected topublish Ordinance No. 600bytitleandsummary,  
pursuant toMinnesota Statutes, Section 412.191, Subdivision 4.   

3. AfullcopyoftheOrdinance isavailable atShorewood CityHallduring regular office
hoursandonthecity’swebsite.  

thADOPTED bytheShorewood CityCouncil onthis10 dayofApril2023.  

Jennifer Labadie, Mayor
Attest:  

Sandie Thone, CityClerk

225864v1











CityCouncilMeetingItem

ItemTitle/Subject:   SpringClean-UpandPaperShredEvent
9A.1MeetingDate:  4/10/2023

Preparedby:   EricWilson, Communications Coordinator
Reviewedby:   BrendaPricco, DeputyClerk
Attachments:     

Background: Everyyear, CityofShorewood offersaspringdrop-offforlargebulkyitemsand
someitemsthatcannotberecycledcurbside. Thisevent, calledSpringClean-Up, isalwaysheld
onthethirdSaturday inMay8a.m. to1p.m. Thedrop-offislocatedatShorewood Public
WorksDepartment.   

Inconjunction withSpringClean-Up, afreepapershredeventisheldinthecityhallparkinglot,  
onthesameday9a.m. to12p.m. (oruntilthetrucksarefilled).   

FinancialorBudgetConsiderations:  Nofinancialorbudgetconsiderations. SpringClean-Upis
onlyavailable toShorewood residents. Adriver’slicenseorotherIDwithShorewood address is
required foranyonedroppingoffitemsatPublicWorks. Cashorcheckpaymentswillbe
acceptedduringtheevent.  

ActionRequested: n/a

Connection toVision/Mission: Consistency inproviding residents qualitypublicservices, a
healthyenvironment, asustainable taxbase, andsoundfinancialmanagement through
effective, efficient, andvisionary leadership.       

MissionStatement:  TheCityofShorewood iscommitted toproviding residents qualitypublic
services, ahealthy environment, avarietyofattractive amenities, asustainable taxbase, and
sound financial management through effective, efficient, andvisionary leadership.  Page1



CityofShorewood Council Meeting Item

9A.2Title/Subject:  TreeSale2023Update
Meeting Date: Monday, April10, 2023 MEETING
Prepared by:  EricWilson, Communications Coordinator TYPE

RegularReviewed by:  Sandie Thone, CityClerk/HRDirector
MeetingAttachments:  n/a

Background:  Forseveral years, theCityofShorewood hasparticipated inandhosted
anannual treesale. Asinthepast, theCityofShorewood willorderthetrees, offer
themforsale, andberesponsible forthepurchase ofanyunsold trees thatwere
ordered. Unsold treespurchased bythecitywillbeplanted inpublic spaces.   

TheCityofShorewood began accepting orders forthe2023TreeSaleat8a.m. on
Monday, April3, 2023, onlineandin-person. 124trees (18varieties) wereoffered.  
Saleswillcontinue untilalltreesaresold.    

Statusofsales*   
20paying customers havepurchased 88trees
11of18varieties aresoldout
36treesremain (Citywillneedtopurchase atleast2treesbecause resident did
notreceive 2treesin2022forCityofShorewood construction projects)  
Current revenue: $6,139.25 (costtopurchase treesinadvance = $9,603.70)  
43treeswaitlisted

Asof4:00p.m. onApril5.    

ActionRequested: n/a

Timeline: Thetreesalewillcontinue tobeadvertised onthecitywebsite andthrough
socialmedia untilalltreesaresold. Residents willpickuptreesduring thefirstweekof
September 2023.   

ConnectiontoVision/Mission: Consistency inproviding residents quality public
services, ahealthy environment, avarietyofattractive amenities, asustainable tax
base, andsound financial management through effective, efficient, andvisionary
leadership. Thisprogram helpsprotect, preserve, andenhance theenvironment ofthe
community.   

Mission Statement:  TheCityofShorewood iscommitted toproviding residents quality public
services, ahealthy environment, avariety ofattractive amenities, asustainable taxbase, and
sound financial management through effective, efficient, andvisionary leadership.  Page1



CityofShorewood Council Meeting Item

9A.3Title/Subject:  WaterInfrastructureandDelivery
MEETINGMeeting Date: Monday April10, 2023

TYPEPrepared by:  Andrew Budde, CityEngineer Regular
Reviewed by:  MattMorreim, Director ofPublicWorks Meeting
Attachments:    

Background:  AttheFebruary 27, 2023Council Retreat thewatersystem andwater
quality werediscussed asatopic. Council wassupportive ofstaffcompleting additional
testing tobetterdetermine thesourceandlevelsofironand/orhardness inthewater.   
Themainconcerns withironandhardness aretaste, odor, aesthetics anditcanclog
water fixtures. Ironisasecondary drinking water regulation andisnotcurrently tested
during themonthly samples takenateachofthewells.      

Staffwillpullandtestsamples fromthe6activewellswithin thecityandhavethe
samples tested forironandwater hardness. Theywillalsopullasample downstream of
thecity’sloneironfiltersatwell7tounderstand theireffectiveness. These distribution
samples andtesting results willprovide additional insight intothequality ofthecity’s
watersources.   

Staffwill review andanalyze thewater testing results before providing additional
recommendations forfurther water testing, watermodeling orcapital ormaintenance
recommendations.  

FinancialConsiderations:  Approximately $1,000-$1,500fortestsplusstaff time.    

Mission Statement:  TheCityofShorewood iscommitted toproviding residents quality public
services, ahealthy environment, avariety ofattractive amenities, asustainable taxbase, and
sound financial management through effective, efficient, andvisionary leadership.  Page1



CityofShorewood Council Meeting Item

9A.4Title/Subject:  EurekaRoadImprovements
MEETINGMeeting Date: Monday April10, 2023

TYPEPrepared by:  Andrew Budde, CityEngineer Regular
Reviewed by:  MattMorreim, MarcNevinski Meeting
Attachments:  ResidentPetition, 2011TrailMap,   

ProjectProcess & DecisionChart

Background:  AttheMarch27, 2023, council meeting therewerecomments made by
residents attheMatters fromtheFloorwithconcerns about theupcoming Eureka Road
project thatiscurrently slated intheCapital Improvement Planforconstruction in2025.   
Thegeneral concerns fromresidents, thatincluded apetition signed byapproximately
40residents, isthattheywant theroadway resurfaced in2023duetoitspoorcondition
andtheydon’twant theroadway widened, addition ofcurb & gutter, addition of
sidewalk, treeremoval, orthecitytoacquire easements ifneeded forthose
improvements.      

Thecityhasbeenbudgeting forimprovements toEureka Road northbyincluding itin
theCapital Improvement Plansince2018.  Thecity’spractice forlargerstreet
improvement projects suchasthis, istocomplete ascoping studyapproximately two
yearspriortoconstruction.  Thisprocess anddocument help thecitycouncil, staff, and
residents gather accurate information tobetterunderstand thebenefits andassociated
impacts thatcouldbeimplemented aspartoftheoverall project.  Theprocess is
intended tohavealong-termvision thatwillcreate thenecessary infrastructure forthe
next30-50years.  Thecityevaluates itsexisting infrastructure toseeifitneedsany
significant repairs.  Inthiscasewatermain andsanitary sewerbothcurrently existunder
theroadway alongwithsome limited stormsewer.  Thecityalso looksatother
infrastructure thatthecommunity couldbenefit fromifitwasincluded intheproject such
asadditional drainage improvements, adding curb & gutter, sidewalk/trails, on-street
parking, emergency services, andothersafety concerns.  The2011TrailPlanidentified
Eureka Roadasalocation thatthecommunity couldbenefit frombyaddingasidewalk
ortrail, soitisappropriate forthecitytoevaluate theimpacts ofasidewalk andifthis
planned project istheappropriate timetoinstall thatsidewalk.  Thecityhasalso
developed aProject Process andDecision Chart thatisusedasaguide whenworking
through these typesofprojects withtheintent toinform thecityandresidents of
information needed tomakeeducated decisions andwhenresident feedback onthe
project ismostbeneficial.  

Staffwillapproach thestudy intwomainsteps. First, preliminary data, suchasverifying
existing utility infrastructure andresident inputwillbegathered tocurrent conditions and
community goals forEureka Road. Staffwillthenprovide anupdate totheCouncil with

Mission Statement:  TheCityofShorewood iscommitted toproviding residents quality public
services, ahealthy environment, avariety ofattractive amenities, asustainable taxbase, and
sound financial management through effective, efficient, andvisionary leadership.  Page1



preliminary finding andoptions before proceeding withmoredetailed work, suchas
topographic surveying andwetland delineation.  





























7B

MEETING TYPE
RegularMeetingCityofShorewood Council Meeting Item

Title / Subject:   MinorSubdivision andVariancetoLotWidth
Applicant: ZehnderHomes, Inc.  
Location: 24835Yellowstone Trail

MeetingDate:     November 22, 2021
Preparedby:    MarieDarling, PlanningDirector

ReviewDeadline: January26, 2022
Attachments:    PlanningStaffMemorandum

Resolution

Background:  Seeattachedmemorandum fordetailed background onthisitem.    

AttheNovember 16, 2021meeting, thePlanningCommission unanimously recommended approvalof
theminorsubdivision andvariancerequesttosubdivide theproperty intotwoparcels, basedonthe
findingthattheapplicanthasmetthevariancecriteriaandtheintentofthesubdivision regulations.   
Theapplicantwaspresentatthemeeting. Tworesidents requested tospeakandraisedconcerns
regarding neighborhood characteranddrainage, whichisaddressed below.   

Drainageconcerns:  

Theresidentwasconcerned thatthelowareaonthewestsideofthesubdivision couldcarrywater
fromtheMinnetonka CountryClub. Afterthemeeting, staffrequested theCityEngineer reviewthe
subdivision andreviewtheneighborhood situation. ThelowareadoesdraintoLakeMinnewashta, but
doesnotfromtheMinnetonka Country Club.  Theapplicanthasproposed tocreatearaingardento
provideratecontrol fortheimpervious surfaces expectedonthenewlot. Between theraingarden
andtheneweasements thatwouldbeprovidedaroundtheperiphery ofeachlot, thesubdivision
wouldnotnegatively impactthearea.    

FinancialorBudgetConsiderations:  Theapplication feescoverthecostofprocessing therequest.  If
approved, theapplicantwouldberequiredtopayoneparkdedication fee ($6,500) andonelocal
sewerconnection charge ($1,200) priortorecording thesubdivision.  

Recommendation / ActionRequested:  StaffandthePlanningCommission recommend approvalof
therequesttosubdivide thepropertywithavariance forlotwidthat24835Yellowstone Trail.  

Motionrequiresasimplemajority toadopt.    

MissionStatement:  TheCityofShorewood iscommitted toproviding residentsqualitypublicservices, a
healthyenvironment, avarietyofattractive amenities, asustainable taxbase, andsoundfinancial
management througheffective, efficient, andvisionary leadership.   

S:\\Planning\\Planning Files\\Applications\\2021 Cases\\24835 Yellowstone Trail\\CAFMemo.docx



NextStepsandTimelines:  IftheCityCouncil approves therequest, theapplicantwouldneedtomeet
theconditionsofapprovalandcouldthenrequestacertifiedcopyoftheresolution forrecordingat
Hennepin County.   Oncethesubdivision isrecorded, theapplicantcouldrequestabuildingpermit.    













MEMORANDUM

Date: 11/08/2021

To: Marie Darling, Planning Director

From: MattBauman, PE

Subject: 24835 Yellowstone TrailLotSplitand Variance Review
CityofShorewood
Project No.: 0C1.123603

Thefollowing documents weresubmitted forreview ofcompliance with theCityof City
Code,Local Surface Water Management Planand Engineering Standards: 

Administrative Subdivision revised dated8/2/2021
Proposed SitePlan, Grading andErosion Control Planrevised dated8/2/2021
Stormwater Management PlanandHydroCAD models dated7/30/2021
Certificate ofSurvey revised dated6/28/2021

Thisreview only included thedocuments listedabove, primarily dealing withgrading, modelling and
stormwater managementand lotsplitand variance requests. 

1.Update reference ontheGrading, Drainage andErosion Control plantotheMinnehaha Creek
Watershed District. 

2.TheGrading planshows anexisting storm sewer linecrossing thedriveway within lot4, butnot
shown ontheExisting Conditions Survey.  Clarify ifthislineexists andwhat ishappening with
it. 

3.Listpipematerial andsizesofproposed driveway culvert.  Culvert shallbeinstalled toCity
standard detail: STO-14. 

4.Theproperty mustmeet theCityofShorewood Surface Water Management PlanRegulations
Section 5.3).  Theproposed planmeets these regulations, withafewclarifications needed. 
a.Verify thetimeofconcentration andflowlengthofcatchment PR1. 
b.Verify that there isatleast3.0feetofseparation fromthebottom oftheinfiltration basin

tothegroundwater elevation.  Thisshould beconfirmed withasoilprobe prior toduring
construction. 

5.Modify theponded areatobefullywithinoneproperty ortheother, notboth. 
6.Theproposed infiltration basin shallbeconstructed within theproposed drainage andutility

easement since itwillbeserving lot3, butplaced ontheexisting home lot4.  Thismakes it
accessible toCitystaff. 

7.Owners ofprivate stormwater facilities shall enter intoanagreement with theCitydescribing
responsibility forthelong-termoperation andmaintenance ofthestormwater facilities andshall
beexecuted andrecorded withbuilding permit application.  Anoperations andmaintenance plan
fortheproposed stormwater system should beincluded with future submittals. 

a.Atemplate plan isattached. 

3(7$ 4® /³§¤±²0« 2¤ µ¨¤¶ 9¤««®¶²³®¤ 4±63¯«¨³ 2¤ µ¨¤¶



Name:24835 Yellowstone TrailLotSplitandVariance Review
Date: 11/08/2021
Page: 2

8.Applicant shall determine ifitwishes forLot3toberesponsible forlongtermmaintenance ofthe
stormwater facility orLot4.  Lot3necessitates theneedforthebasin, butboth lotsdocontribute
somedrainage toit. 

a.IfLot3isresponsible, themaintenance agreement willbewritten requiring they
maintain, andaseparate agreement needed forLot4toallowLot3rightofaccess to
maintain. 

b.IfLot4isresponsible, themaintenance agreement willbesufficient forthesingle lot,  
however iffuture improvements toLot3areproposedthat would trigger more
stormwater control, Lot3would nothave access tothebasin toaddstorageor make
changes.  Lot3would need tocome upwith additionalcontrol features ontheir lot. 

9.Apermit willberequired withMinnehaha Creek Watershed District forErosion andSediment
Control. 













EmmaNotermann

From: DaleShrode <dcshrode@icloud.com> 
Sent: Friday, November 12, 202112:20PM
To: Planning
Subject: Zehnder Homes Inc. variance request

November 12, 2021

To:   Planning Dept.  
CityofShorewood
5755Country ClubRoad
Shorewood, MN55331

From:   DaleShrode
24755Yellowstone Trail
Shorewood, MN55331

Re:   ZehnderHomesInc. variancerequest

DearPlanningDept;  

Iamthepropertyownerontheeastsidefrom24835andoppose thesubdivision.    

Ipurchased mypropertybecauseIwasattracted tothegreenspaceofthegolfcourseacrossthestreetandthedistance
betweenmyneighbors.  AppearsImaybelosingboth.   
Idomisstheserenityofthegolfcourse)  

Ibelievethesubdivision woulddevaluemypropertymarketing towards potentialbuyersthatareattracted tothesame
amenities Iwas.    

Theprevious residentof24835ScottHenryhadtoldmeheappliedforasubdivision andwasdenied.  Ibelievethe
propertywassurveyed atthattimealso.   

Drivethrutheneighborhood tosee24835atitsfullpotential.  Youwillseechildren playingballwiththeirdoginthe
spacious frontyard.  ThescenecouldbeasettingforaNorman Rockwell painting, animageanycommunity wouldbe
proudof.    

Keepthisproperty asisforgenerations offamilies toenjoy.  Thematuretreesbetweentheproperties havetakenyears
toprovideanaturalborder.  Removing themwillbarrenthelandscape.    

Pleaselet’snotvaryfromourstandards andsqueeze anotherhomeintoourcommunity.  Whatmakesthemagic
numbertovarytheminimum ?  4inches ?,   
4feet ?, 40feet ?  

1



PerhapsMinnetonka CountyClubdevelopment couldofferbuyersanewhomeratherthana24835undersized
subdivision.    

Sincerely,  

DaleShrode

SentfrommyiPad

2



RESOLUTION21-140

CITYOFSHOREWOOD
COUNTYOFHENNEPIN
STATEOFMINNESOTA

ARESOLUTIONAPPROVINGANMINORSUBDIVISION
ANDVARIANCEFORZEHNDERHOMESFORPROPERTY

LOCATEDAT24835YELLOWSTONETRAIL

WHEREAS, Zehnder Homes, Inc. (the “Applicant”), hassubmitted arequest foraminor
subdivision andvariance forlotwidth inorder tosubdivide theproperty legallydescribed as
follows intotwolots:  

Lots3 & 4, Block1, Deerfield Addition, Hennepin County, Minnesota

And,   

WHEREAS, theApplicant’sproposed subdivision ofsaidrealproperty intotwoparcels islegally
described andillustrated inExhibitA, attached heretoandmadeaparthereof; and

WHEREAS, theApplicant’sapplication materials andplansdatedSeptember 3and28, and
November 3, 2021werereviewed bythePlanning Director, whosememo wasforwarded tothe
Planning Commission fortheirmeeting onNovember 16, 2021, acopyofthememoisonfileat
theShorewood CityHall; and

WHEREAS, theapplication wasconsidered bythePlanning Commission ataregular meeting
heldonNovember 16, 2021, theminutes areonfileatCityHall; and

WHEREAS, theCityCouncil considered theapplication atitsregularmeeting onNovember 22,  
2021at which timethePlanning Director'smemorandum andthePlanning Commission's
recommendations andresident comments werereviewed andcomments wereheardbythe
Council fromtheApplicant andresidents.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BEITRESOLVED bytheCityCouncil oftheCityofShorewood thatthe
minorsubdivision andvariance arehereby approved, subject tothefollowing conditions:  

1. Therealproperty legallydescribed above ishereby approved fordivision intotwo
parcels, legallydescribed andillustrated inExhibitA, subject totheconditions listed
below.  

2. Thevariance toallowalottobecreated with99.65feetwhere100feetarerequired by
ordinance ishereby approved, inaccordance withtheplanssubmitted onSeptember 3
and28, 2021andrevisions submitted November 3, 2021, based onthefindings thatthe
criteriahavebeenmet, especially thattheapplicant hasshown unusual hardship inthat
thevariance wouldallowuncomplicated legaldescriptions, wouldnotimpact thepublic
welfare, wouldbecompatible with theneighborhood andwouldbetheminimum action
necessary toalleviate theunusual hardship, subject totheconditions listedbelow.  

3. Thesubdivision andvariance approval issubject tothefollowing conditions:  
a. Priortorecording thesubdivision, theapplicant shallsubmit thefollowing

consistent withCityCode:  
i. Submit executed 10-footdrainage andutilityeasements around the

periphery ofeachlot.  
ii. Submit payment ofoneparkdedication fee ($6,500) andonelocal

sanitary sewerAccess charge ($1,200).  
iii. Remove theaccessory shedonfutureLot3.  



iv. Identify thelocation ofthewellonfutureLot4.  
b. Priortoissuance ofabuilding permit:  

i. Theapplicant shallsubmit proofofrecording forthisresolution,  
easements andmaintenance agreement.  

ii. Priortoconstruction ofimprovements oneither lot, theapplicant must
acquire theappropriate permits.  

iii. Withabuilding permitapplication, theapplicant shallsubmitarevised
treepreservation/landscaping planshowsalltheproposed trees in
conforming locations andrevise theplanstobeconsistent withtheCity
Engineer’smemo datedNovember 8, 2021andCityCode.  

iv. Priortoinstalling services orconducting otherworkintheright-of-way,  
theapplicant shallobtain theappropriate right-of-waypermit.  

v. Theapplicant shallsubmitaconstruction management plandetailing
contractor parking, howdeliveries willbemadewithout blocking public
streets, wherestorageofmaterials willoccur, hoursofconstruction and
howoftenstreetswillbeswept.  

4. TheCityClerkwillfurnish theApplicant withacertified copyofthisresolution for
recording purposes whentheaboveconditions aresatisfied.  

5. TheApplicant shall record thisresolution andtheeasements with theHennepin County
Recorder orRegistrar ofTitleswithin30 (thirty) daysofthedateofthecertification ofthis
resolution.  

ndADOPTEDBYTHECITYCOUNCILOFTHECITYOFSHOREWOODthis22 dayof
November, 2021.  

Jennifer Labadie, Mayor
ATTEST:  

Sandie Thone, City Clerk

2



ExhibitA

Legaldescription oftheeasterlyparcel (ParcelA):  

Lot3, Block1, Deerfield Addition, according totherecorded platthereof, Hennepin County,  
Minnesota.   

Subject totheeasements asrecorded onsaidplatofDeerfield Addition.   

Legaldescription ofthewesterlyparcel (ParcelB):  

Lot4, Block1, Deerfield Addition, according totherecorded platthereof, Hennepin County,  
Minnesota.  

Subject totheeasements asrecorded onsaidplatofDeerfield Addition.   

3



CITY OF SHOREWOOD REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES

NOVEMBER 22, 2021

Page 3 of 12

Mayor Labadie asked staff to address the comment made regarding charging residents for copies
and asked if there is a way for people to view documents free of charge. 

City Clerk/ HR Director Thone stated that there is no charge for inspection of documents. She

stated that the only time there is a charge is when residents want to leave with documents whether
they are electronic or hard copy. 

Mayor Labadie asked for an explanation of `inspection'. 

City Clerk/ HR Director Thone explained that inspection means that they can come into City Hall
and view the documents. 

4. PUBLIC HEARING

5. REPORTS AND PRESENTATIONS

6. PARKS

A. Report by Commissioner Hirner on October 26, 2021 Park Commission Meeting

Park Commissioner Hirner gave a brief overview of discussion and actions taken at the October
26, 2021 Park Commission meeting, as reflected in the minutes. 

7. PLANNING

A. Report by Commissioner Riedel on November 16, 2021 Planning Commission
Meeting

Planning Commissioner Riedel gave a brief overview of the discussion and actions taken at the
November 16, 2021 of the Planning Commission, as reflected in the minutes. 

B. Minor Subdivision and Variance

Applicant: Zehnder Homes

Location: 24835 Yellowstone Trail

Planning Director Darling gave an overview of the request for a minor subdivision to re- establish
the original lot line between two parcels. She noted that the original lot was recorded in the 1950s
and were combined at some point in the past. She explained that the measurement regulations
have changed since that time, so with current regulations, the lot would be four inches short of

the 100 feet that is required. Staff initially recommended approval because, to recreate legal
descriptions in this case, would create two complicated legal descriptions rather than two very
simple legal descriptions. Staff received one letter that is attached in the packet and noted that
there were also two requests to speak at the Planning Commission meeting. She gave a brief
overview of the comments made at the meeting regarding the ravine work that was completed on
the west side of the property that drains the Minnetonka Country Club which has been working
well and were concerned that this subdivision would interfere with the flow. She stated that upon

review, she found that there is a low area on the west side of the property which carries some
localized overland waters, but no overland water from the Minnetonka Country Club. She noted

that there is a twenty- four inch storm sewer pipe that is on the property to the west which carries
a substantial amount of water from the Minnetonka Country Club regional ponds, through this



CITY OF SHOREWOOD REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES

NOVEMBER 22, 2021

Page 4 of 12

area, and then directed towards Lake Minnewashta. The existing easements over the other
property, as well as the standards ten foot easement, are adequate for the City to maintain the
pipes in the future and nothing is expected with this subdivision that would harm the existing
drainage system. The applicant is proposing to put a rain garden in the north middle portion of
the project which would account for rate control from the additional impervious surface proposed
on Lot #4. The Planning Commission voted unanimously to recommend approval of the request. 

Gorham moved, Johnson seconded, Adopting RESOLUTION NO. 21- 140, " A Resolution

approving a Minor Subdivision and Variance for Zehnder Homes for Property Located at
24835 Yellowstone Trail." All in favor, motion passed. 

C. Variance to Minimum House Width

Applicant: Ben and Meghan Becker

Location: 6180 Cathcart Drive

Planning Director Darling explained the request to allow a home to be built at twenty feet wide
rather than the required twenty- two feet. The applicant is proposing to remove all of the existing
structures from the site and build a new home with two detached garages that would be used to
store their personal vehicles and equipment. The home and the garages will have cedar stain, 
lap -siding with metal roofs. She explained that the proposed home is 20x65 feet and would have
about four percent impervious surface coverage. Staff and the Planning Commission
recommended approval. She noted that the Planning Commission had asked staff to add
discussion of the purpose of a minimum width and size home as well as the size of the garage be
added to their work plan in the upcoming year. 

Ben Becker, 6180 Cathcart Drive, explained that this home was designed for his family by their
architect, Dan Salmela. He read aloud brief biographical information regarding the background
and design style of Mr. Salmela. He stated that they are very proud that Mr. Salmela has designed
their home and explained some of the elements related to efficiency and natural light. 

Councilmember Callies stated that a two foot difference, to her, does not seem to be that much. 

She stated that Mr. Becker stated that twenty feet is conducive to natural light and asked why
twenty- two feet would not be conducive to their plans. 

Mr. Becker stated that he believes that is a question that would need to be answered by Mr. 
Salmela. He noted that when they discussed it, Mr. Salmela indicated that sixteen feet is actually
the optimal width. He stated that they have seven foot tall windows and there will be dark cement
floors that will allow the light to flood in and warm the flooring and the house. He stated that Mr. 

Salmela has built other homes that are twenty feet wide which is the compromise that he feels is
not too drastic a departure from the optimal sixteen feet width. 

Councilmember Callies asked what the basis was of the City having a twenty- two foot width
requirement. 

Planning Director Darling explained that the minimum home size is consistent with other cities
around the metro area. She stated that years back, the State Statute changed which said that
zoning ordinances could not prevent any particular types of construction as long as they met the
State building code. She stated that as a get around from people trying to live in sheds or mobile
homes on regular lots, most cities instituted a size limitation. She stated that the size for

Shorewood is 22x30 feet which is the equivalent of 660 square feet. She stated that the Becker



CITY OF SHOREWOOD COUNCIL CHAMBERS
PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 5755 COUNTRY CLUB ROAD
TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 16, 2021 7:00P.M.  

MINUTES

CALL TOORDER

ChairMaddycalled themeeting toorderat7:01P.M.  

ROLL CALL

Present: Chair Maddy; Commissioners Eggenberger, Gault (arrivedat7:05P.M.) and
Riedel; Planning Director Darling; and, Council Liaison Johnson

Absent: Commissioners Huskins

1. APPROVAL OFAGENDA

Riedel moved, Eggenberger seconded, approving the agenda forNovember 16, 2021, as
presented. Motion passed 3/0.   

2. APPROVAL OFMINUTES

October 5, 2020

Eggenberger moved, Riedel seconded, approving thePlanning Commission Meeting
Minutes ofOctober 5, 2021, aspresented. Motion passed 3/0.  

3. MATTERS FROM THE FLOOR - NONE

4. PUBLIC HEARINGS – NONE

5. NEW BUSINESS

A. Subdivision Variance
Applicant:  Zehnder Homes, Inc.  
Location:  24835 Yellowstone Trail

Planning Director Darlingexplained therequest tosubdivide theproperty intotwolotsandfora
variance toallowtheeasterly lottobe99.65feetwidewhen100feetisrequired.  Shenoted that
thisproperty wasoriginally twolotsthatwerethencombined intoonelarger lot.  Shestated that
thelotwidthregulations andhowtheyaremeasured havechanged sincetheoriginal lotswere
created inthe1950s.  Shestated thatother thanthelotwidthrequirement, thesubdivision is
routine.  Staff recommends approval oftherequests, subject totheconditions asincluded inthe
staffreport.  Therehasbeenoneletter received notingconcerns withthesubdivision causing a
decline intheirproperty values.    

Commissioner Gaultarrived atthemeeting.    



DRAFT CITYOFSHOREWOOD PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING
NOVEMBER 16, 2021
Page2of9

Commissioner Riedelnoted thatoneoftheconditions includes removal ofanaccessory shedand
askedifitwasbecause ifthissubdivision isallowed thatwould leaveanaccessory structure on
alotthathasnomaindwelling.    

Planning Director Darling confirmed thatthiswasthereason forthiscondition andnotedthatit
wasalsonotcompliant intermsofsetbacks.  

Commissioner Eggenberger asked about thewellandthecondition toidentify thelocation ofthe
wellonfutureLot4.    

Planning Director Darling explained thattheCitywants toensure thateachlothasitsown
functioning potable watersource.    

Commissioner Eggenberger confirmed thatthismeant thattherewasnotCitywaterconnected to
thisproperty andifsomeone were tobuildonLot3theywouldhavetodigtheirownwell.  He
askedwhatwouldhappen ifitwasfoundthatthewellwaslocated onLot3.   

Planning Director Darling stated thattheywouldhavetodiganewwellforLot4.    

Commissioner Riedelaskedabout theright-of-waytoaccessLot3.   

Planning Director Darling stated thatwhentheyinstallanewservice connection forsewerthey
willneedaright-of-waypermit inorder todoso.    

thEricZehnder, Zehnder Homes, 1030010 Avenue N, Plymouth, noted thathehasbeenableto
determine thatthewellforLot4islocated onLot4andisshownonthesurvey.    

Commissioner Riedelaskediftheproperty owner hadanyobjection toremovaloftheshed.   

Mr. Zehnder stated thattheydonothaveanyobjection tothatcondition.  Henotedthatthecurrent
renter forLot4isplanning topurchase thehome.    

ChairMaddy askediftherewasanyone presentwhowould liketocomment onthisapplication.   

DaleSchrode, 24755Yellowstone Trail, stated thathethought hisneighborhood wasamature
andestablished area.  Hestated thathehaslikedallthesettings forthehomeandnever imagined
thattherewouldberoomtosqueeze anotherhomein.  Hestated thatthisrequestseemstobe
outofplaceandstatedthattheproposed homewillobstruct hisviewtothewestandfeels the
limitedvisibility will increase thedangerofentering theroad.  Hestated thathealsohasconcerns
withchanges inthelandscape andtheenvironmental impact because thatsmallpieceofwoods
offersahugesanctuary foranarrayofwildlife, suchasowls, pileated woodpeckers, wildturkeys,   
anddeer.  There isalsoawholeecosystem therewith treefrogsandother insects.  Hestated
thatitwouldbeashametolosetheexisting habitatandcollapse theecosystem.  Hereadaloud
aquote fromtheShorewood website about itbeinga ‘littlebitcityandlittlebitcountry’.  Hestated
that he understands thatthereisaplantoreplant treesbutthatmeans thatthehabitatwon’t
returnuntil50-100years fromnow.  Hestated thathedoesnotseethisprojectasimproving or
adding benefit tothecommunity orneighborhood andwillhaveanawkward, misfitappearance.   
Heasked thattheCityadhere toitsminimum lotstandards andnotapprove thevariance for
subdivision.  Hestated thatthattheneighborhood hasbeenlongestablished andbelieves it
shouldstaythatwayforthenextgeneration toenjoy.    



DRAFT CITYOFSHOREWOOD PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING
NOVEMBER 16, 2021
Page3of9

George Greenfield, 24715Yellowstone Trail, askediftheCommission wasawareofthenature
ofthewooded ravineonthewestboundary oftheproperty.  Hestated thatabout3or4years
ago, theconservation district, inconjunction withthenewdevelopment onthegolfcourse, redid
thedrainage system thatgoesthrough theravine fromtheCountry ClubtoLakeMinnewashta.   
Hestated thatthestatedsizeismisleading because thatareacannotbedisturbed without
wrecking thenewdrainage system.  Hestated that itappears thattheexisting driveway willremain
andaskedifthedriveway forthenewhomewouldrunparallel toYellowstone orperpendicular.   
Hestated that, asMr. Schrode pointed out, thatwilldisrupt theconformity andsymmetry ofthe
neighborhood.  Hestated thatavariance of4inches sounds minor, however oneofthethings
thathebelieves perturbs manyresidents isthattheCityrarelyactsonprinciple andeverything is
doneadhoc.  Hestated that4inchesisaviolation oftheCityCode. Hegave theexample ofthe
request thatwasdeniedtodivideaparcelintosmaller lotsalongSeamans andnotedthathesees
aconstant inconsistency inhowtheCityacts.  Hestated that iftheCitydoesapprove thisrequest,  
hebelieves theyshould leteveryone intheDeerfield Addition knowthattheirproperty willbe
susceptible tosubdivision intotwolots.   

Mr. Zehnder stated thathecanaddressafewoftheconcerns thathavebeenraised. Henoted
thatifyoulookatanaerialphoto, thehousesetbacks onthehomes inthatareaarewidelyvaried.  
Hestated thatregarding theconcern aboutanobstructed view, therearecurrently alotoftrees
thereandtheyplantoleavemanyoftheminplaceandthehomewillbebuiltapproximately 60
feetoffthestreet.  Hestated thattheycouldmovethelotline4inches tohaveaconforming lot,  
buttheyfeltitwasalotofworkfor4inchesandfeltitwaseasier toleaveitwhere theoriginal lot
linedivision waslocated.   

Commissioner Gaultconfirmed thatthereason forasking forthisvariance wasthatMr. Zehnder
wasusinganexisting property description forParcelA.   

Mr. Zehnder confirmed thatwascorrectandthiswasapreviously platted lotthathadbeen
combined atsomepointandthisisjusttoreturn ittothatoriginal split.    

Commissioner Gaultstated thatitappears asthoughMr. Zehnder isasking forthevariance to
avoid theexpense ofcreating newproperty descriptions andnewsurveys.    

Mr. Zehnder stated thathewouldnotsayitistheexpense, butjustextrawork, because everything
hasalready beendone.    

Commissioner Gaultstated thattheonlyreason thisishereisbecause of4inches.   

Mr. Zehnder notedthatwhenhepurchased theproperty, theywereunder theimpression that
ParcelAwas100feetwidebecause thatiswhat isshownontheHennepin County site.  He
stated thatitwasaprettybigsurprise whenthesurveycamebackanditwas99.65feetandwas
toldbyPlanning Director Darling thatitwould requireavariance.    

Commissioner Riedelstated thatintheaddition tothecostofsurveying, thereisalsotheargument
tobemadethathaving parallel lotlinesinconsistency isdesirable.    

ChairMaddy closed thepublic inputat7:23p.m.  Hegaveanoverview onhowtheCityregulates
housing andlotsplits.  Heexplained thattheCommission’shandsarekindoftiedforsaying that
theydonotwantmorehomesinthisneighborhood, because Mr. Zehnder hasenoughareafor
twohomesperthezoning.    



DRAFT CITYOFSHOREWOOD PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING
NOVEMBER 16, 2021
Page4of9

Commissioner Eggenberger stated thathedoesnotsee4inchesasbeingenough torecommend
denialofthevariance request.   

Eggenberger moved, Gault seconded, recommending approval ofthe Minor Subdivision
and Variance toLotWidth at24835 Yellowstone Trail, subject totheconditions included
inthestaff report. Motion passed 4/0.  

Planning Director Darling thatshewilldiscuss thedrainage concern thatwasraisedbyoneofthe
residents withtheCityEngineer priortobringing thistotheCityCouncil.   

B. Variances forSecond Driveway and toFront Yard Setback
Applicant: Zehnder Homes, Inc.  
Location:  4990 Shady Island Point

Planning Director Darling gaveanoverview oftherequest foravariance toallowanewhometo
bebuiltat25feetfromthefrontproperty linerather than35feetandavariance toallowasecond
driveway where theregulations allowone.   Shestated thatthisproperty isunique inthatithasa
verynarrowroadway thatservesasthepublicstreet.  Shestated thattheroadisabout10feet
widewhich isgrounds forsupporting thesecond driveway connection.  Shenotedthatthe
homeowner hadsubmitted aletterearlier todaythatstated thatmoving thehomebackwould
require removal ofalarge, mature, catalpa treethat theywouldprefer tosaveandchanging the
location wouldplacethehomeinanareawithsuspect soils.   Staff followed upwiththeapplicant
whoattested thattheground water ishighontheproperty andisabout5feetbelowthesurface
where theyareproposing thenewhome.  Shenoted thattheCity’srequirement isthatthehome
hastobeaminimum of4feetaboveground water.  Staff found thatsomeofthecriteria weremet
toallowthevariance forfrontyardsetback andallcriteria weremettoallowthesecond driveway.   
Staff received twolettersofsupport fortherequests fromnearby neighbors totheproperty.    

Commissioner Eggenberger stated thattheproposal isforthehometobefurtherbackthanthe
existing home.    

Planning Director Darling explained thattheproposal isforthehometobesubstantially further
backthantheexistinghome.    

Commissioner Eggenberger confirmed thatinformation playsnopartinthisissuebecause they
wouldstillneedavariance.  

Planning Director Darlingstated thatiftheyhadplanstokeeptheexisting footprint ofthehome
thentheywould notneedavariance.  Sheexplained thatwhenyouteardownanoldhomeand
buildanewhome, itisveryhardtokeeptotheexisting footprint.    

ChairMaddy stated thathethinks theCommission canrecognize thattheirproposal would lessen
thenon-conformity.    

thEricZehnder, Zehnder Homes,. 1030010 AvenueN, Plymouth, explained thatwhenhefirst
wrote thevariance application, hefocused moreonthefactthat theyaremaking thecurrent
situation betterwhichhefeltwasastrongandcompelling argument.  Henotedthathehadlost
sightofthefactthattheywanttosave thelargecatalpa tree.  Hestated thatastheymovecloser
tothelakethere isalsoaconcern thatitwouldbeevenclosertotheground waterandnotedthat
theyareunsure aboutthosesoilsbecause theytestedwheretheywouldliketoputthehome, but
didnottestbackfurther thanthat.   Hestated thatonlyabouthalfoftheproposed new home
wouldbepastthesetbackandnotedthatitwillbeat25feetwhere theexisting homeisonly



CITYOF

SHOREWOOD
5755COUNTRYCLUBROAD, SHOREWOOD, MINNESOTA 55331-8927 · 952.960.7900

www.ci.shorewood.mn.us · cityhall@ci.shorewood.mn.us

PUBLIC MEETING NOTICE
PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING

Applicant(s):  ZehnderHomesInc

For:  Publicmeetingtoreviewarequestforasubdivision varianceforminimumlotwidththe
propertyat24835YellowstoneTrail

Why:  Theapplicant isrequestingapprovalofavariancetoallowthesubdivisionofaparcelinto
twoparcelswithoneofthenewparcelsbeing .35feet (aboutfourinches) shortofthe100- 
footlotwidthminimum. Pleaseseereversesideforalocationmapofthesite. More
informationontheapplicationcanbeobtainedbycalling952-960-7900oremailingstaffat
planning@ci.shorewood.mn.us

When: Tuesday, November16, 2021at7:00p.m. orassoonthereafteraspossible

Where: ShorewoodCityHallCouncilChambers, 5755CountryClubRoad, Shorewood

TheagendaandpacketwillbeavailableontheCity’swebsiteonNovember12, 2021.   

Writtencommentswillalsobeconsideredatthemeetingifreceivedpriorto4:00p.m. onNovember16,  
2021.  YoumaysubmitwrittencommentsviaU.S. Mailto:  

PlanningDept.   
CityofShorewood
5755CountryClubRoad
Shorewood, MN 55331

Orbyemailto: planning@ci.shorewood.mn.us

Anonymouscommentsarenotacceptedaspublictestimony.   

MarieDarling, AICP
PlanningDirector
CityofShorewood



24835YellowstoneTrailLocationMap



37!!44.228.34!42!111: 37!!44.228.34!45!115437!!44.228.34!54!1136
DJUZ!PG!TIPSFXPPENBUU! EPFSHFKBTPO! E!XJUUB!'!TBSB!N!XJUUB
6866!DPVOUSZ!DMVC!SE36136!ZFMMPXTUPOF! USBJM35736!ZFMMPXTUPOF! US
TIPSFXPPE!NO!!!66442TIPSFXPPE! NO!!66442TIPSFXPPE! NO!!!66442

37!!44.228.34!45!111737!!44.228.34!45!115537!!44.228.34!54!1138
FIOEFS!IPNFT!JODPSQPSBUFEDIBE! X!'!BOO!SBZNPOEKFGGSFZ! S!WPPSIFFT

5511!CMVFCFMM!USBJM!T7251!QMFBTBOU!BWF35761!XJMUTFZ!MB
NFEJOB!NO!!!66451TIPSFXPPE! NO!!!66442TIPSFXPPE! NO!!!66442

37!!44.228.34!45!111837!!44.228.34!45!115637!!44.228.34!54!1139
EBOJFM!GFSOBOEF\[ FNNBOVFM!CFOJUFTMBSSZ! Q!GPSCPSE
8:5:!MPXFS!IBNMFU!DUBTIMFZ!CFOJUFTCFUI! GPSCPSE
BQQMF!WBMMFZ!NO!!!6623536111!ZFMMPXTUPOF! USBJM35711!XJMUTFZ!MB

TIPSFXPPE!NO!!!66442TIPSFXPPE! NO!!!66442

37!!44.228.34!45!111937!!44.228.34!45!1157
DVSUJT!K!'!EFCSB!K!OFMTPOEBWJE!'! DBOEBDF!SVTU
7256!QMFBTBOU!BWF28611!DPVOUZ!SPBE!212X
TIPSFXPPE!NO!!!66442XBZ\[BUB!NO!!!664:2

37!!44.228.34!45!111: 37!!44.228.34!54!1127
UJOB!N!'!BMGSFEP!QFSF\[ H!E!HSFFOGJFME!'!C!B!NFBLJOT
7276!QMFBTBOU!BWF35826!ZFMMPXTUPOF! US
TIPSFXPPE!NO!!!66442TIPSFXPPE! NO!!!66442

37!!44.228.34!45!113737!!44.228.34!54!1128
DZOUIJB!DIFOFZEBMF!D!'!LBUIFSJOF!N!TISPEF
UIFPEPSF!D!DIFOFZ!JJJ35866!ZFMMPXTUPOF! US
35961!ZFMMPXTUPOF! USTIPSFXPPE!NO!!!66442
FYDFMTJPS!NO!!66442

37!!44.228.34!45!113837!!44.228.34!54!1129
XIJUMFZ!'!MJOEB!NPUUKBDPC!B0DBTTBOESB!H!SPCFSUT
359:1!ZFMMPXTUPOF! US35911!XJMUTFZ!MB
TIPSFXPPE!NO!!!66442TIPSFXPPE! NO!!!66442

37!!44.228.34!45!114237!!44.228.34!54!112: 
EBXO!N!'!NJDIBFM!\[JFHMFSMJOEB! M!QMBOUJLPX
36151!ZFMMPXTUPOF! US35861!XJMUTFZ!MB
TIPSFXPPE!NO!!!66442TIPSFXPPE! NO!!!66442

37!!44.228.34!45!114: 37!!44.228.34!54!1131
KBDPC!QPNQMVO!'!FSJO!PMTPOTIBOF!HFSTJDI
3741!GPSFTU!BWF35811!XJMUTFZ!MB
FYDFMTJPS!NO!!66442TIPSFXPPE! NO!!!66442

37!!44.228.34!45!115137!!44.228.34!54!1135
KBDPC!QPNQMVO!'!FSJO!PMTPOMBODF!'!LBSJO!OFXFMM
3741!GPSFTU!BWF35766!ZFMMPXTUPOF! US
FYDFMTJPS!NO!!66442TIPSFXPPE! NO!!!66442








	Agenda
	2A Minutes 03-27-23 Work Session
	2B Minutes 03-27-23 Regular Meeting
	2C Verified Claims
	2D Seasonal Hire
	2E Multiple Dock Facility License
	2F Resignation and Recruitment
	2G Contractor Agreement
	5A Amend Chapter 202
	6A Amend Chapter 1004
	8A Massage Therapy License
	9A.1 Spring Clean-Up
	9A.2 Tree Sale
	9A.3 Water Infrastructure
	9A.4 Eureka Road
	9A.5 Yellowstone Trail

